
                    NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
 
WEDNESDAY, 21ST JULY, 2010 at 18:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD 
GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Bull (Chair), Browne (Vice-Chair), Alexander, Basu, Ejiofor, 

Newton and Winskill 
 

Co-Optees: Ms Y. Denny (church representative),1 Church of England vacancy, Ms M 
Jemide (Parent Governor), Ms S Marsh (Parent Governor), 1 Parent 
Governor Vacancy, Ms H Kania (LINk Representative) 
 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. WEBCASTING    
 
 Please note: This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent 

broadcast via the Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the 
Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed. The 
images and sound recording may be used for training purposes within 
the Council.  

 
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However, by entering 
the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting 
to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 

 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Committee Clerk 
at the meeting. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
3. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late 

items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will 
be dealt with at item 11 below. New items of exempt business will be dealt with at 
item below). 
 
 



 

2 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the 

authority at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the 
existence and nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, 
or when the interest becomes apparent.  
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice 
the member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their 
financial position or the financial position of a person or body as described in 
paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any 
approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any 
person or body described in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct. 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS    
 
 To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, Section B, 

paragraph 29 of the Council’s constitution. 
 

6. CABINET MEMBER QUESTIONS  (PAGES 1 - 6)  
 
 Briefing and answers to questions from Councillor Reith, Cabinet Member for 

Children & Young People. 
 

7. CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SERVICE SAFEGUARDING PLAN  
(PAGES 7 - 50)  

 
 To provide a refresh of the Safeguarding Plan following the Ofsted inspection in 

January 2010.  
 

8. CHILD PROTECTION PERFORMANCE AND KEY ISSUES  (PAGES 51 - 66)  
 
 To consider and note the update report on child protection performance. 

 
9. SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PERFORMANCE ADVISORY COMMITTEE    
 
 To receive a verbal update on the Member’s Safeguarding Policy and 

Performance Panel. 
 

10. MINUTES  (PAGES 67 - 72)  
 
 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 8th March 2010. 

 
11. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 
 



 

3 

12. FUTURE MEETINGS    
 
 To note the following dates for Child Protection Overview & Scrutiny meetings: 

 
Monday 1st November 2010  
Thursday 17th March 2011  
 
 

 
 
Ken Pryor 
Deputy Head of Local Democracy and 
Member Services  
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Natalie Cole 
Principal Committee Co-Ordinator 
Tel: 020-8489 2919 
Fax: 020-8489 2660 
Email: Natalie.Cole@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Thursday 8th July 2010 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET MEMBER QUESTIONS: CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN & 
YOUNG PEOPLE, COUNCILLOR LORNA REITH 

For Overview & Scrutiny Committee – 21st July 2010 
 
Finance 
 
The Council in forming the 2009-10 budget strategy recognised the need to 
address the issues which had been identified in Children’s Safeguarding by 
the Joint Area Review. It made available provision for an additional £4.2m 
which has been earmarked for the actions set out in the agreed JAR Action 
Plan submitted to the Government in February 2009.  
 
In addition the Council has agreed to direct £0.75m from 2008-09 DSG 
resources for safeguarding purposes and the Schools’ Forum has received 
details of how these resources are to be deployed. 
 
Despite this additional resource, which is largely for one-off additional work 
targeted at improving safeguarding practice, the current projections indicate a 
significant overspend. This is a result of increasing numbers of Looked After 
Children (LAC) and in particular their placement and associated legal costs.   
Virtually all local authorities have experienced significant increase in referrals 
and the need for placement 
 
The key points relating to the overall increase in the number of Children in 
Care can be summarised as follows: 
 
(i) The number of LAC children has increased from 464 in April 2009 to 

596 in April 2010 
(ii) Similarly, the number of children subject to child protection plans has 

increased from 180 in March 2009 to 278 in April 2010 – many 
children move from child protection plans to the care system when 
those plans are not successfully safeguarding them 

(iii) The Southwark Judgement, which requires all 16 and 17 year olds 
presenting to the Council as homeless, to be considered as Looked 
After Children, has increased pressure in this area. 

(iv) The improvements in safeguarding practice have undoubtedly helped 
to identify children needing services. 
 

Many other London authorities are also experiencing large increases in LAC 
numbers and nationally the reported increase is around 17%. 
 
School Standards and Inclusion 
 
Successes 

• Haringey schools have improved by 20.1% in the percentage of pupils 
attaining 5+ A* - C grades at GCSE since 2005.  This compares with a 
national improvement of 13.2%.  Haringey improved by 8% from 2008 
to 2009 compared to national improvement of 4.7%.  Haringey is now 
at 67.7% compared to the national figure of national of 70.0%. 

 

• In the 5+ A* - C (including English and maths) measure, Haringey 
schools have improved by 13.5% since 2005 compared to a national 
improvement of 5.1%.  Haringey improved by 3.7% from 2008 to 2009  

 

Agenda Item 6Page 1



CABINET MEMBER QUESTIONS: CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN & 
YOUNG PEOPLE, COUNCILLOR LORNA REITH 

For Overview & Scrutiny Committee – 21st July 2010 
 

compared to national improvement of 2.2%.  Haringey is now at 45.7% 
compared to national of 49.8%.  This is currently the more significant of 
the GCSE attainment measures.  For 2010 Haringey is targeting a 
further substantial increase, to 55%.  If this target is met, it is likely for 
the first time to see Haringey schools attaining above the national 
average at GCSE. 

 

• There are no Haringey schools below the government threshold of 30% 
5+ A* - C (including English and maths). 

 

• The levels of young people who are Not in Education, Employment or 
Training (NEET) has remained at 6.8% (2009-2010 figure). The figure 
for those young people who are unknown has reduced from 11.2% to 
5.0% over the same period. These figures now bring us in line with 
statistical neighbours and close to the national figures.   The further the 
unknown figure reduces the more pressure will be put on the NEET 
figure to rise. The challenge will be to continue this improvement in 
2011 against an economic down turn. The current April figure shows an 
improvement for NEET and unknown levels of 0.9% and 1% 
respectively over the previous April.   

 
Areas of Focus for 2010 

• Plans for post 16 commissioning of places are going well and we have 
fully met the government requirements.  This also gives an opportunity 
to look at future plans and make sure that the post 16 provision meets 
the needs of our young people. 

 

• Following the change in government and the announcement of public 
sector cuts, we will need in the months ahead to review our services to 
schools to ensure that they are within constrained budget limits but still 
provide a good quality of support and challenge for our schools. 

 
 
Investment in primary schools  
 
Haringey has continued to respond to the London-wide primary reception 
places shortage pro-actively, with work progressing on the expansion of 
Rhodes Avenue (subject to confirmation that funding can be made available) 
and planning in progress for additional places in the east of Haringey.  In 
recent years 120 new primary admission places have been created, with 30 
more at Rhodes Avenue for 2011.  All London boroughs face major 
challenges in this area. 
 
We are currently in dispute with the Department for Education (DfE) over the 
withdrawal of £8.57m previously allocated for new primary places in Haringey.  
Without this funding our plans for meeting the primary places shortage will 
necessarily be short-term and potentially disruptive to some schools. 
 
 

Page 2



CABINET MEMBER QUESTIONS: CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN & 
YOUNG PEOPLE, COUNCILLOR LORNA REITH 

For Overview & Scrutiny Committee – 21st July 2010 
At Broadwater Farm (subject to confirmation that funding can be made 
available) we are creating a new primary special school linked closely to a 
rebuilt primary school as an innovative learning campus, providing the best for 
some of our most vulnerable children alongside a superb mainstream primary 
school environment.  We are also investing across the primary estate to 
support the continuing rise in Haringey school standards. 
 
BSF 
 
The Building Schools for the Future programme remains on target, with the 
new secondary school – Heartlands High School – opening in September this 
year.  Over £200m of works includes major re-building of Haringey secondary 
schools. 
 
Also through the BSF programme, Haringey secondary schools are being 
equipped with state of the art information and communications technology to 
transform learning and to support effective school leadership. 
 
FISD 
 
Haringey’s award-winning Family Information Services Directory 
(www.fisd.haringey.gov.uk) has been operating for over a year, putting the 
borough in the vanguard of local authorities in providing a comprehensive 
information source on local facilities and services for children and young 
people.   
 
School meals 
 
Haringey’s school meals service introduced healthy eating menus a year 
before the new national menus and nutritional standards were required.  Meal 
take up in the all-important primary years has increased by 8% over the last 
two years. 
 
 
Children’s Networks 
 
The Children’s Networks Business Unit of the CYPS consists of a number of 
services that deliver both prevention and early intervention and support to 
children and young people who have additional needs. This means working in 
a coordinated way to prevent children and young people from progressing to 
the higher levels of the Haringey thresholds of need and wherever possible 
enabling their needs to be met through universal provision. 
 
Areas of Focus 
 

• further development of the three Children’s Networks multi-disciplinary 
teams in order to deliver more integrated support to children/young 
people identified through the CAF as requiring targeted services e.g.  

 
family support, behaviour support, speech and language provision, 
education welfare, and other targeted interventions;  

Page 3



CABINET MEMBER QUESTIONS: CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN & 
YOUNG PEOPLE, COUNCILLOR LORNA REITH 

For Overview & Scrutiny Committee – 21st July 2010 

• extension of partnership arrangements with other statutory, voluntary 
and community  agencies services so that children, young people and 
families receive coordinated and joined-up support within existing 
arrangements for multi-disciplinary working;  

• consolidation of an intense piece of work across the CYPS and 
partners, particularly NHS Haringey and the Mental Health Trust,  to 
develop a strategy to support children and young people with social,  
emotional and behavioural difficulties to ensure that the needs of these 
children are appropriately identified,  that they receive the right support 
at the right time and,  wherever possible,  they are retained in Haringey 
provision.  

• review of Participation services to ensure that children and young 
people contribute to decisions that are made about them;  

• reviews of Youth and Connexions,  and Play.  
 
The Coalition Government announced in May that the requirement to have the 
ContactPoint database will be scrapped. However there has been no further 
announcement on how this is to be achieved and subsequently we have been 
told that there still an expectation that an interim service will be delivered. 
Further Government guidance on this is expected.  
 
  
Children and Families 
 
The focus of the Children and Families service in the past year has been on 
improving our services, in particular in relation to safeguarding.  Actions in the 
Safeguarding plan are being taken forward in the service and we have made 
significant changes in the way referrals and assessments are managed, the 
support to social workers including improvements to Fi, supervision, 
management and training.   
 
The service has been re-organised with new managers taking on some new 
roles.  Safeguarding leadership is now held by an AD Safeguarding with two 
Heads of Service in First Response and Safeguarding and Support managing 
and developing their services.  Extensive auditing has demonstrated a gradual 
improvement in the quality of practice.  The January 2010 Ofsted report spoke 
very positively of the progress in this area, whilst identifying areas for further 
development. Developing more joint working with other areas of CYPS, 
particularly Children’s Networks, and with other agencies, particularly the 
police and health is ensuring that the service we provide is better able to meet 
the needs of the most vulnerable children. 
 
We have responded to a significant rise in demand, with over 50% more 
referrals than in the previous year and have seen the numbers of children 
looked after and subject to child protection plans rise.  This has put pressure 
on all our staff and a key part of our action plan is around recruitment and  
 
 
 
retention of social workers and delivering training and development 
opportunities. 

Page 4



CABINET MEMBER QUESTIONS: CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN & 
YOUNG PEOPLE, COUNCILLOR LORNA REITH 

For Overview & Scrutiny Committee – 21st July 2010 
 
Our services to children with disabilities have been greatly enhanced by 
delivering the Aiming High programme which has resulted in a sharp rise in 
the number of families benefiting from short breaks.  We have been working 
closely with Adult Services to improve transition. 
 
We will continue to focus on improving safeguarding and develop multi-
agency working and improving commissioning to extend the range of support 
for the most vulnerable children particularly those affected by domestic 
violence 
 

 

 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Appendix 1 

Overview & Scrutiny 
 
Safeguarding Plan – Glossary of Terms and Acronyms 
 

 
 
AFI Area for Improvement 
APA Annual Performance Assessment 
C&YPS Children & Young People’s Service 
CAF Common Assessment Framework 
CAIT Child Abuse Investigation Team 
CAMHS Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service 
CiC Children in Care – children in care to the local authority 
CiN Children in Need – children in receipt of a service from Children & 

Families after assessment identified a particular need 
CLU Children With Disabilities (looked after under a series of short-

term placements)  
CP Child Protection 
CPP Child Protection Plan – the agreed plan by which the statutory 

(and other) agencies will protect a child from significant harm, 
agreed at a multi-agency child protection conference 

CT Children’s Trust 
CTEMPG Children’s Trust Executive Performance Management Group 
CYPP Children & Young People’s Plan 
DCSF Department for Children, Schools & Families 
ECM Every Child Matters – government initiative with 5 themes of 

activity to focus activity in support of children and young people 
FWi Framework-I – computer system used for children & families 

casework 
GOSH Great Ormond Street Hospital in Haringey 
HCT Haringey Children’s Trust 
HSP Haringey Strategic Partnership 
JAR Joint Area Review 
LAA Local Area Agreement 
LAC Looked After Child(ren) – children in care 
LC Leaving Care – usually referring to that group of children in care,  

over the age of 16 and still in receipt of services or support 
LCT Leaving Care Team – the specialist team that take responsibility 

for (most) children in care from age 16 and see them through to 
the end of their care episode.  The team helps to find 
accommodation and either work or continued study. 

LSCB Local Safeguarding Children’s Board 
MACIE Multi-Agency Child Investigation Exercise 
MPS Metropolitan Police Service 
NMUH North Middlesex University Hospital Trust 
NQSW Newly Qualified Social Worker 
Ofsted Office for Standards in Education – undertake inspections on 

children’s services including safeguarding 
PCT Primary Care Trust 
PEP Personal Education Plan – required for every looked after child in 

Page 11



Appendix 1 

education 
R&A Referral & Assessment 
SCR Serious Case Review 
SPE Single Point of Entry 
SPSG Safeguarding Plan Steering Group 
SPPP Safeguarding Policy & Practice Panel 
SW Social Worker(s) 
UNM Unaccompanied Minor(s) – children under 18 who have come to 

this country from abroad without a parent or other attached adult 
 
 
 

Page 12



1
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
a
. 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
r
d
in
g
 P
la
n
 M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 R
e
p
o
r
t 
- 
S
u
m
m
a
r
y
 

 G
e
n
e
r
a
te
d
 o
n
: 

2
7
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
0

 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 S

ta
tu

s
 

 
N

o
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 
/ 

n
o
t 

o
n
 
tr

a
c
k
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

 
N

o
t 

o
n
 t

ra
c
k
 b

u
t 

n
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

to
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

 
A
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

a
n
d
 

d
e
s
ir
e
d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

 

 

 A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 

S
ta
tu
s
 
L
a
te
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
 

1
.0

1
 C

re
a
te

 a
 c

u
lt
u
re

 o
f 
s
h
a
re

d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

il
it
y
 f
o
r 

a
ll
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
’s

 c
h
il
d
re

n
 &

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.0

2
 L

o
c
a
l 
S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
il
d
re

n
 B

o
a
rd

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 o

f 
S
e
ri
o
u
s
 C

a
s
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.0

3
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C
B
 (

a
ls

o
 s

e
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 2

.0
2
) 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.0

4
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 F
a
m

il
y
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.0

5
 A

g
re

e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

C
A
F
 q

u
a
li
ty

 a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 P

a
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 C

A
F
 p

ro
to

c
o
l 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.0

6
 E

n
s
u
re

 q
u
a
li
ty

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 b

y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 c

h
il
d
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
a
n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.0

7
 D

e
li
v
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
re

s
h
o
ld

s
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.0

8
 E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

t 
C
h
il
d
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

Page 13



2
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 

S
ta
tu
s
 
L
a
te
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
 

1
.0

9
 I

d
e
n
ti
fy

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.1

0
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

n
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 f
o
r 

th
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 
c
a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.1

1
 R

e
v
is

e
, 
u
p
d
a
te

 a
n
d
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 c

h
il
d
re

n
’s

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 m
a
n
u
a
l 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.1

2
 I

m
p
le

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 l
e
a
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
fo

r 
c
h
il
d
re

n
 m

o
v
in

g
 f

ro
m

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
p
e
c
ia

li
s
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 b

a
c
k
 i
n
to

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 /

 u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.1

3
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 d

ir
e
c
to

ry
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
c
ri
te

ri
a
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le
 

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
 N

o
t 

 o
n
 T

ra
c
k
 -

 S
e
e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 

1
.1

4
 I

n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
Ja

n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
0
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.1

5
 R

e
c
ru

it
 a

n
d
 r

e
ta

in
 g

o
o
d
 s

ta
ff
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
li
a
n
c
e
 o

n
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 –

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.1

6
 E

n
s
u
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
ta

ff
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.1

7
 E

n
s
u
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s

ta
ff
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.1

8
 E

n
s
u
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

p
o
li
c
e
 s

ta
ff
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.1

9
 I

m
p
le

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t

ra
in

in
g
 

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
 N

o
t 

 o
n
 T

ra
c
k
 -

 S
e
e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 

1
.2

0
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 c

o
re

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
 N

o
t 

 o
n
 T

ra
c
k
 -

 S
e
e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 

1
.2

1
 A

s
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
Ja

n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
0
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.2

2
 E

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 a
n
d
 r

e
li
a
b
il
it
y
 o

f 
d
a
ta
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.2

3
 E

s
ta

b
li
s
h
in

g
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
d
e
m

a
n
d
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 f
o
re

c
a
s
ti
n
g
 f
u
tu

re
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.2

4
 N

H
S
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

tr
u
s
ts

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
a
p
a
b
il
it
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.2

5
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
, 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

1
.2

6
 I

m
p
ro

v
in

g
 L

o
c
a
l 
In

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 O

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 C
h
il
d
re

n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
0
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

 

Page 14



3
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 

S
ta
tu
s
 
L
a
te
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
 

2
.0

1
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 f
it
 f
o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

2
.0

2
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C
B
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

2
.0

3
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
In

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

 
  

2
.0

4
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

th
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l,
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

li
s
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 

li
k
e
li
h
o
o
d
 o

f 
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

2
.0

5
 
A
ll
 
H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 
C
h
il
d
re

n
’s

 
C
e
n
tr

e
s
 
a
n
d
 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
w

il
l 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 
a
 
C
A
F
 
fo

r 
a
n
y
 
c
h
il
d
re

n
 
th

a
t 

th
e
y
 
c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

to
 
b
e
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

, 
a
s
 t

h
e
 f
ir
s
t 

s
ta

g
e
 i
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
 N

o
t 

 o
n
 T

ra
c
k
 -

 S
e
e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 

2
.0

6
 R

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

IC
S
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 o

n
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

-I
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

. 
In

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

 
  

2
.0

7
 

E
s
ta

b
li
s
h
 

IC
S
 

/ 
F
W

i 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
te

a
m

s
 

to
 

s
ta

b
il
is

e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 

u
s
e
 

a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

fu
tu

re
 

c
o
n
fi
g
u
ra

ti
o
n
. 

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
  

2
.0

8
 U

s
e
 n

e
w

 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 m

o
b
il
e
 t

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
ta

ff
 i
n
 d

e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

C
h
e
c
k
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
  

2
.0

9
 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 
fo

r 
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 
w

o
rk

in
g
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 
to

 
im

p
ro

v
e
 
h
o
w

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 
w

o
rk

 
w

it
h
 
th

e
 
m

o
s
t 

c
o
m

p
le

x
 f
a
m

il
ie

s
 a

n
d
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 v
a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
 N

o
t 

 o
n
 T

ra
c
k
 -

 S
e
e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 

2
.1

0
 
W

o
rk

 
w

it
h
 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
a
n
d
 
s
e
tt

in
g
s
, 

th
ro

u
g
h
 
th

e
 
L
S
C
B
 
S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 
in

 
S
c
h
o
o
ls

 
F
o
ru

m
 
to

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 
a
 
c
le

a
r 

s
e
t 

o
f 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

 j
o
in

t 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

re
s
h
o
ld

s
 f
o
r 

re
fe

rr
a
l 
to

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

li
s
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
  

2
.1

1
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 c

h
il
d
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 c

o
re

 t
ra

in
in

g
 c

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff
 o

f 
a
ll
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

C
h
e
c
k
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
 N

o
t 

 o
n
 T

ra
c
k
 -

 S
e
e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 

2
.1

2
 A

n
a
ly

s
e
 c

ro
s
s
-p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
ra

in
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 i
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,

 s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

o
f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
  

2
.1

3
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 w

it
h
 C

h
il
d
re

n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

2
.1

4
 A

n
a
ly

s
e
 k

e
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
p
 q

u
a
rt

il
e
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 

(a
ls

o
 s

e
e
 3

.0
9
) 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
Ja

n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
0
 -

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

2
.1

5
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip
 

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
  

 A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 

S
ta
tu
s
 
L
a
te
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
 

3
.0

1
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

 p
e
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 f
ro

m
 a

n
 L

S
C
B
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d
 

 
  

3
.0

2
 E

n
s
u
re

 c
o
m

p
li
a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 L

a
m

in
g
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
ll
y
 

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
  

Page 15



4
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 

S
ta
tu
s
 
L
a
te
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
 

3
.0

3
 I

m
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 “

b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
” 

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
  

3
.0

4
 F

W
-I

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 e

m
b
e
d
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
. 

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d
 

 
  

3
.0

5
 M

u
lt
i-
d
is

c
ip

li
n
a
ry

 t
e
a
m

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
  

3
.0

6
 R

e
v
ie

w
 T

h
ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
in

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d
 

 
  

3
.0

7
 W

o
rk

 w
it
h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 D

e
a
n
e
ry

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 R

o
y
a
l 
C
o
ll
e
g
e
 o

f 
G

P
s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 l
in

k
a
g
e
s
 t

o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d
 

 
 N

o
t 

 o
n
 T

ra
c
k
 -

 S
e
e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 

3
.0

8
 U

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

il
e
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
li
v
e
r 

e
x
c
e
ll
e
n
t 

ra
ti
n
g
 

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 
  

 

Page 16



1
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
b
. 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
r
d
in
g
 P
la
n
 M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 R
e
p
o
r
t 
(
I
n
 P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
)
 

 G
e
n
e
r
a
te
d
 o
n
: 

2
7
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
0

 

 

 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 S

ta
tu

s
 

 
N

o
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 
/ 

n
o
t 

o
n
 
tr

a
c
k
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

 
N

o
t 

o
n
 t

ra
c
k
 b

u
t 

n
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

to
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

 
A
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

a
n
d
 

d
e
s
ir
e
d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

 

  

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

E
x
is
ti
n
g
 

d
ir
e
c
to
ri
e
s
 

u
p
d
a
te
 

w
it
h
 

s
u
m
m
a
ry
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

v
io
le
n
c
e
 

 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

in
te
n
ti
o
n
s
 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
 
re
v
ie
w
s
 

o
f 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 b
a
s
e
; 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 

a
 g
a
p
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

1
.1
3
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

d
ir
e
c
to
ry
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 

d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

c
ri
te
ri
a
 a
n
d
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
 

P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

in
te
n
ti
o
n
s
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

fo
ll
o
w
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
f 

li
s
t 

o
f 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 
a
n
d
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
; 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 
d
e
ta
il
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
ll
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
; 
a
n
d
 

g
a
p
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

Page 17



2
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
ry
 

e
n
tr
ie
s
 

q
u
a
li
ty
 

c
h
e
c
k
e
d
, 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
n
e
e
d
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 

a
d
d
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

o
n
g
o
in
g
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

A
p
r
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 
 

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

tr
a
in
e
d
 
in
 
th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 
a
n
d
 
u
s
e
 
o
f 

c
o
m
m
o
n
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

S
o
c
ia
l 

w
o
rk
 
s
ta
ff
 
tr
a
in
e
d
 
o
n
 
ri
s
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
in
g
 o
f 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

S
y
lv
ia
 C
h
e
w
  

S
ta
ff
 

tr
a
in
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

w
it
h
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 
in
 
c
h
il
d
 
c
e
n
tr
e
d
 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
a
n
d
 

a
u
th
o
ri
ta
ti
v
e
 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
s
o
c
ia
l 
h
is
to
ry
 

re
s
e
a
rc
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

M
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

e
x
e
rc
is
e
 

u
s
in
g
 

M
A
C
IE
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

1
.1
9
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
 

A
g
re
e
, 
im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 
tr
a
in
 
s
ta
ff
 
o
n
 
a
 

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 

In
c
id
e
n
t 

D
e
-b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 

m
o
d
e
l 

w
it
h
in
 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
m
u
lt
i-

d
is
c
ip
li
n
a
ry
 t
e
a
m
s
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

A
p
r
 2
0
1
0
 -
 N
o
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

D
e
-b
ri
e
f 
is
 s
ti
ll
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
. 
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
fo
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 

to
 
b
e
 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
 
in
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
f 

p
o
li
c
ie
s
, 
p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

M
a
r
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

D
e
te
rm

in
e
 

h
o
w
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
JA
R
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

A
p
r
 2
0
1
0
 -
 N
o
t 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

R
a
n
g
e
 

o
f 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

/ 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 
m
a
p
p
e
d
. 

P
la
n
 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 
n
e
x
t 
s
ta
g
e
 o
f 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
o
 A
u
tu
m
n
 2
0
1
0
. 
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

2
.0
3
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 

s
e
c
to
r 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
 

w
it
h
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

in
te
re
s
te
d
 
in
 
b
e
in
g
 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
 
in
 
d
e
li
v
e
ry
 

o
f 
th
e
 J
A
R
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

0
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
2
 

 

A
p
r
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 
u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
 
to
 
m
a
p
 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

g
ro
u
p
s
 
b
e
y
o
n
d
 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 
a
n
d
 

H
A
V
C
O
 w
h
o
 m

ig
h
t 
b
e
 i
n
te
re
s
te
d
. 
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

 

Page 18



3
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

2
.0
5
 A
ll
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

a
n
d
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 w
il
l 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
 C
A
F
 

fo
r 
a
n
y
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 

th
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 

to
 b
e
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
, 

a
s
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
s
ta
g
e
 

in
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 
R
o
ll
-o
u
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 s
e
tt
in
g
s
 

0
1
 F
e
b
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 

A
p
r
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 
 

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 
W
o
rk
in
g
 
T
ra
in
in
g
 
in
 
p
la
c
e
 
- 

C
A
F
 
tr
a
in
 
th
e
 
tr
a
in
e
r 

s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 
n
o
w
 

b
o
o
k
e
d
 
- 
d
a
te
s
 
fo
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
o
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
to
 

b
e
g
in
 J
u
n
e
. 
 

A
li
s
o
n
 B
o
th
a
m
 

E
a
rl
y
 

In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

R
e
v
is
e
d
 
ti
m
e
 
ta
b
le
 
a
n
d
 
p
ro
je
c
t 
p
la
n
 
fo
r 

C
h
il
d
 
p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 
re
la
te
d
 
e
x
e
m
p
la
rs
 
a
n
d
 

w
o
rk
 f
lo
w
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
p
la
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 
A
p
r
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

2
.0
6
 R
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
IC
S
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 o
n
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
-I
 a
n
d
 

m
a
k
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

th
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 b
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
. 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

N
o
n
 c
h
il
d
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 i
n
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
L
o
c
a
l 

A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 

M
a
y
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
- 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 s
ta
ff
 m

a
y
 

n
e
e
d
 
to
 
b
e
 
tr
a
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 
to
 
w
o
rk
 
o
n
 
th
e
 

C
IN
 
c
e
n
s
u
s
 
- 
if
 
th
is
 
h
a
p
p
e
n
s
 
u
p
 
to
 
5
 

w
e
e
k
 d
e
la
y
 o
n
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 d
a
te
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
p
la
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 f
o
r 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
IC
S
 

C
h
il
d
 
P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 
o
n
 
F
W
-I
 
to
 

e
n
a
b
le
 b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 s
ig
n
e
d
 o
ff
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

D
a
ta
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 
fo
r 

C
h
il
d
 

P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
-I
 s
y
s
te
m
 (
e
.g
. 

d
a
ta
 c
le
a
n
s
in
g
) 
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 
h
e
ld
 
w
it
h
 
s
o
c
ia
l 

w
o
rk
e
rs
 
to
 
b
u
il
d
 
th
e
ir
 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 
in
 

u
s
in
g
 F
W
-I
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

2
.0
7
 E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 I
C
S
 

/ 
F
W
i 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

te
a
m
s
 t
o
 s
ta
b
il
is
e
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 

u
s
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 

fu
tu
re
 

c
o
n
fi
g
u
ra
ti
o
n
. 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

U
s
e
 
o
f 
F
W
-I
 
e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 
to
 
C
h
il
d
re
n
 
in
 

C
a
re
 H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

M
a
y
 2
0
1
0
..
..
..
. 
 

W
o
rk
 
o
n
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 
e
tc
 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 

(M
a
rk
e
d
 a
s
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 b
u
t 
d
u
e
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l)
  

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

 

Page 19



4
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
s
tu
d
y
 
o
n
 
u
s
e
 
o
f 
te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 
to
 

m
a
x
im
is
e
 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

0
1
 A
p
r 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

N
e
w
 
p
la
n
 
d
e
v
is
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

(w
it
h
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 I
T
, 
C
&
Y
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 I
T
, 
F
W
I 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
  
a
n
d
  
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 F
o
rw
a
rd
) 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

M
a
y
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
s
ig
n
 
o
ff
 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 2
5
 M

a
y
 
1
0
. 
A
s
 

p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 d
a
te
 w

il
l 
b
e
 

d
u
e
 t
o
 J
u
n
e
 1
0
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

2
.0
8
 U
s
e
 n
e
w
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 m

o
b
il
e
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
ta
ff
 i
n
 

d
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

P
la
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 f
o
r 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

0
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

M
a
r
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

P
il
o
t 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

a
n
d
 

p
la
n
 

fo
r 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 a
g
re
e
d
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

Jo
in
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 
N
e
e
d
s
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

o
f 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 

a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
0
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

Ji
n
 L
im
  

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 
w
o
rk
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 
(w

it
h
 
a
d
u
lt
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
a
n
d
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
) 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

2
8
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
0
 

 

A
p
r
 1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

S
e
e
 
re
p
o
rt
 
to
 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 
T
ru
s
t 

1
4
th
 

A
p
ri
l.
  

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
g
re
e
d
 

0
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

A
p
r
 1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

S
e
e
 
re
p
o
rt
 
to
 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 
T
ru
s
t 

1
4
th
 

A
p
ri
l.
  

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

2
.0
9
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 f
o
r 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 h
o
w
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
o
rk
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

c
o
m
p
le
x
 f
a
m
il
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 

v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 

fo
r 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
ti
n
g
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

0
1
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

M
a
y
 2
0
1
0
 -
 I
a
n
 B
a
il
e
y
. 
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

n
e
e
d
s
 

a
n
d
 

s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 

to
 

fa
c
il
it
a
te
 
jo
in
t 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 
a
re
 
b
e
in
g
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
. 

T
h
is
 
w
il
l 
e
n
a
b
le
 
m
o
re
 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 
jo
in
t 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
M
o
n
e
y
. 
 

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

2
.1
1
 F
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 c
h
il
d
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
re
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

c
u
rr
ic
u
lu
m
 f
o
r 

s
ta
ff
 o
f 
a
ll
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 
D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 
v
io
le
n
c
e
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

M
a
y
 1
0
 -
 N
o
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

T
h
e
 
in
te
n
ti
o
n
 
to
 
ro
ll
 
o
u
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
o
f 

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 

ri
s
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 

a
c
ro
s
s
 
s
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 -
 a
n
d
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
 a
b
o
u
t 
to
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 

B
a
rn
a
rd
o
s
 

to
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

fo
r 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
o
rs
 

w
h
ic
h
 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ts
 

th
e
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 

Page 20



5
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

S
u
p
e
rv
is
o
r 

M
o
d
e
l 
a
d
o
p
te
d
 
b
y
 
S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 
a
n
d
 
H
e
a
lt
h
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 r
is
k
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
m
o
d
e
l.
  

R
is
k
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

tr
a
in
in
g
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

M
a
y
 1
0
 -
 N
o
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

T
h
e
 
in
te
n
ti
o
n
 
to
 
ro
ll
 
o
u
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
o
f 

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 

ri
s
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 

a
c
ro
s
s
 
s
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 -
 a
n
d
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
 a
b
o
u
t 
to
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 

B
a
rn
a
rd
o
s
 

to
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

fo
r 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
o
rs
 

w
h
ic
h
 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ts
 

th
e
 

S
u
p
e
rv
is
o
r 

M
o
d
e
l 
a
d
o
p
te
d
 
b
y
 
S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 
a
n
d
 
H
e
a
lt
h
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 r
is
k
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
m
o
d
e
l.
  

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
ri
a
l 

c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
y
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

a
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

S
tu
a
rt
 Y
o
u
n
g
  

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

a
n
d
 

m
e
n
to
ri
n
g
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 
fo
r 

c
h
il
d
re
n
 
a
n
d
 
fa
m
il
ie
s
 

te
a
m
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

S
tu
a
rt
 Y
o
u
n
g
  

R
e
v
ie
w
 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

tr
a
in
in
g
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
in
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

0
1
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
0
 

3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

A
p
r
 1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

S
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 
m
o
d
e
l 
a
d
o
p
te
d
 
b
y
 
s
o
c
ia
l 

w
o
rk
 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 

a
n
d
 

h
e
a
lt
h
. 

W
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 
h
e
ld
 
to
 
re
v
ie
w
 
o
f 

c
ro
s
s
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 
 

S
tu
a
rt
 Y
o
u
n
g
  

2
.1
2
 A
n
a
ly
s
e
 

c
ro
s
s
-p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 i
n
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

S
tu
a
rt
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 c
ro
s
s
-p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
la
n
 

0
1
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

A
p
r
 1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

p
la
n
s
 

in
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 
w
il
l 
b
e
 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 
b
y
 

L
S
C
B
 a
n
d
 C
&
F
 D
M
T
. 
 

S
tu
a
rt
 Y
o
u
n
g
  

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

B
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
1
 

 
M
a
y
 2
0
1
0
. 
 

T
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
. 
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

3
.0
3
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 

“b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
” 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 
b
u
il
t 
in
to
 
re
v
ie
w
 
o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
1
 

 
M
a
y
 2
0
1
0
. 
 

T
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
. 
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

Page 21



6
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

N
e
w
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
1
 

 
M
a
y
 2
0
1
0
. 
 

T
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
. 
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

C
h
a
n
g
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

to
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
1
 

 
M
a
y
 2
0
1
0
. 
 

T
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
. 
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 
b
u
il
t 

in
to
 

G
P
s
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l 
P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 
A
p
r
 1
0
 –
  

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
t 
S
P
S
G
. 
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 
b
u
il
t 

in
to
 

a
p
p
ra
is
a
l,
 n
e
w
 l
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
a
li
d
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
G
P
s
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 

A
p
r
 1
0
 –
  

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
t 
S
P
S
G
. 
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

3
.0
7
 W

o
rk
 w
it
h
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 D
e
a
n
e
ry
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 R
o
y
a
l 

C
o
ll
e
g
e
 o
f 
G
P
s
 t
o
 

m
a
k
e
 l
in
k
a
g
e
s
 t
o
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

F
e
a
s
ib
il
it
y
 

s
tu
d
y
 

in
to
 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
ti
n
g
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
g
o
o
d
 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
in
to
 
G
P
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 

A
p
r
 1
0
 –
  

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
t 
S
P
S
G
. 
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

A
n
a
ly
s
is
 
o
f 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
o
f 

“f
a
m
il
y
” 

a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

2
8
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
1
 

 

A
p
r
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 m

il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 a
s
 

a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
. 
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 

Jo
rg
e
  

K
e
y
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

fo
r 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
w
it
h
 
p
ro
fi
le
d
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 a
n
d
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 p
la
n
s
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
1
 

 
A
p
r
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 m

il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 a
s
 

a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
. 
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 

Jo
rg
e
  

3
.0
8
 U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
ta
il
e
d
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

d
e
li
v
e
r 
e
x
c
e
ll
e
n
t 

ra
ti
n
g
 

Ja
n
e
tt
e
 

K
a
rk
li
n
s
  

R
o
b
u
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
1
 

 
A
p
r
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 m

il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 a
s
 

a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
. 
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 

Jo
rg
e
  

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

   

Page 22



R
e
fr
e
s
h
 v
1
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

U
p
d
a
te
d
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
0
  

 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

 

T
h
e
 J
A
R
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

  
 

 

 

Page 23



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 2
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 O
u
r 
C
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 

T
o
g
e
th
e
r…
. 
w
e
 p
ro
te
c
t 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

M
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 

•
 
T
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
e
 b
u
il
d
 a
 l
iv
in
g
 p
ic
tu
re
 o
f 
a
 c
h
il
d
’s
 n
e
e
d
s
. 
W
e
 a
re
 a
lw
a
y
s
 w
a
tc
h
fu
l.
  
W
e
 a
lw
a
y
s
 l
is
te
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
h
ild
’s
 v
o
ic
e
. 
 W
e
 n
e
v
e
r 

ig
n
o
re
 a
 c
h
ild
 w
h
o
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
u
r 
h
e
lp
 o
r 
p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
. 

•
 
T
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
e
 p
o
o
l 
o
u
r 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
ti
m
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
. 
W
e
 n
e
v
e
r 
a
s
s
u
m
e
 i
t 
is
 s
o
m
e
o
n
e
 e
ls
e
’s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
. 
 W
e
 n
e
v
e
r 
le
a
v
e
 

a
 g
a
p
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 w
h
ic
h
 a
 c
h
ild
 c
a
n
 f
a
ll.
 

•
 
T
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
e
 w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 o
f 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 
C
h
ild
re
n
 a
re
 a
t 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 o
f 
e
v
e
ry
th
in
g
 w
e
 d
o
. 
 T
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
e
 w
ill
 m
a
k
e
 t
h
is
 t
h
e
 

b
e
s
t 
p
la
c
e
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
th
e
 w
e
lf
a
re
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
. 

•
 
T
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
e
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
e
v
e
ry
 c
h
il
d
 m
a
tt
e
rs
. 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 

W
o
rk
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
 
to
 
d
e
liv
e
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 
in
 
th
e
 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 
fo
r 
s
o
m
e
 
m
o
n
th
s
. 
 
A
n
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 
w
a
s
 

s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
, 
a
n
d
 a
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 w
a
s
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 O
fs
te
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
C
h
ild
re
n
, 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 

(D
C
S
F
) 
in
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l.
  
T
h
is
 t
h
re
e
 y
e
a
r 
p
la
n
 w
a
s
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 a
m
o
n
g
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
b
y
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
. 

T
h
e
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
b
y
 O
fs
te
d
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
, 
d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
ti
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
w
h
ils
t 
s
o
m
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

m
a
d
e
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 l
im
it
e
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
in
 a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 j
o
in
t 
a
re
a
 r
e
v
ie
w
. 
 T
h
e
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 

re
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 O
fs
te
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 1
1
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 a
ll 
o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 w
e
re
 b
u
ilt
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 
 I
n
 t
h
e
 m
e
a
n
ti
m
e
, 
th
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 o
th
e
r 
fi
n
d
in
g
s
 f
ro
m
 S
e
ri
o
u
s
 C
a
s
e
 R
e
v
ie
w
s
 (
S
C
R
s
) 
a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m
 o
th
e
r 
in
s
p
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 u
p
 t
h
e
 e
v
e
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 
le
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
a
th
 o
f 
B
a
b
y
 P
e
te
r.
 

T
h
e
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
 o
f 
th
e
 J
A
R
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 w
a
s
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 p
u
ll 
th
e
s
e
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
in
to
 a
 s
e
t 
o
f 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 

o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
th
re
e
 y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 f
o
rm
e
d
 t
h
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 
 S
e
v
e
ra
l 
o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 
p
la
n
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
, 
w
h
ils
t 
o
th
e
rs
 n
o
w
 a
p
p
e
a
r 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
 &
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 (
C
Y
P
P
),
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 t
h
e
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
P
la
n
, 
a
n
d
 
is
 
th
e
 
s
in
g
le
 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 
o
v
e
ra
rc
h
in
g
 
p
la
n
 
fo
r 
a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
w
h
ic
h
 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 
a
ff
e
c
t 
c
h
ild
re
n
 
a
n
d
 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
in
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 
 T
h
e
 C
Y
P
P
 i
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
iv
e
 E
v
e
ry
 C
h
ild
 M
a
tt
e
rs
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
 k
e
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
is
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 P
la
n
 f
o
rm
 a
 l
a
rg
e
 p
a
rt
 

Page 24



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 3
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 o
f 
th
e
 “
S
ta
y
 S
a
fe
” 
e
le
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 C
Y
P
P
. 
 T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 p
la
n
 r
a
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
o
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 a
h
e
a
d
 o
f 
th
e
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
 O
fs
te
d
 

fo
llo
w
-u
p
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
is
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
 b
u
ild
s
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
ta
il 
in
to
 t
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
la
n
: 
e
n
a
b
lin
g
 o
u
r 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
th
e
 b
e
s
t.
  

T
h
e
 e
v
o
lu
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 p
la
n
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 s
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
c
a
n
 b
e
 s
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ig
u
re
 1
. 

  
 

            F
ig
u
re
 1
 –
 P
la
n
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
ta
g
e
s
 

Page 25



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 4
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 T
h
e
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
 v
is
it
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 a
s
 a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 i
n
 e
le
v
e
n
 a
re
a
s
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 w
e
re
 t
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 f
o
r,
 a
n
d
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
, 
th
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 P
la
n
. 
 T
h
is
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
 b
u
ild
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 w
it
h
in
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

is
 a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
th
e
 b
e
s
t 
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
tr
y
. 
 

W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 F
o
llo
w
-U
p
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
a
s
 g
o
o
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 g
o
o
d
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 f
o
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
it
 

re
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 s
ti
ll 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 c
a
n
 d
o
. 
 T
h
is
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
 o
f 
th
e
 p
la
n
 p
u
lls
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
th
e
s
e
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
w
o
rk
 t
h
a
t 

w
e
 h
a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 e
n
a
b
le
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 t
o
 s
ta
n
d
 o
u
t 
fo
r 
a
ll 
th
e
 r
ig
h
t 
re
a
s
o
n
s
. 

P
u
rp
o
s
e
 

T
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 o
f 
th
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 P
la
n
 i
s
 t
o
 u
n
it
e
 a
ll 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
h
ig
h
-q
u
a
lit
y
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
w
it
h
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
t 
it
s
 c
o
re
. 
 T
h
e
 k
e
y
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 O
fs
te
d
’s
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
, 
J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 a
n
d
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
1
0
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 a
re
 s
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
5
 k
e
y
 t
h
e
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 f
o
r 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
, 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
, 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 
&
 
s
ta
ff
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 
 
T
h
is
 
p
la
n
 
is
 
d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 
to
 
s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 
ro
u
te
 
fo
r 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 “
a
m
o
n
g
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t”
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 w
h
a
te
v
e
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 e
x
is
t.
 

T
h
e
m
e
s
 

T
h
e
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 p
la
n
 r
e
ta
in
s
 t
h
e
 5
 t
h
e
m
e
s
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 P
la
n
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
9
, 
a
ro
u
n
d
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 

b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
: 

•
 
G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
  

•
 
E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

•
 
L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 &
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

•
 
C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 &
 S
ta
ff
in
g
 

•
 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

E
x
p
lic
it
 w
it
h
in
 e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
th
e
m
e
s
 i
s
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
. 
 T
h
e
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
 o
f 
th
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 P
la
n
 b
u
ild
s
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 s
o
lid
 f
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
la
n
. 
  

T
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
s
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
s
 o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 
e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 i
s
 p
la
c
e
d
 e
q
u
a
lly
 o
n
 t
h
e
 h
a
rd
e
r 
a
s
p
e
c
ts
 o
f 
w
o
rk
fl
o
w
, 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

s
o
ft
e
r 
e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 h
a
p
p
e
n
, 
n
o
w
 a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
. 
 T
h
e
 

e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
is
 w
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
h
ig
h
 q
u
a
li
ty
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
f 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 
 A
s
 s
u
c
h
, 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 h
a
s
 

n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 a
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 t
h
e
m
e
, 
b
u
t 
in
s
te
a
d
 i
s
 a
 m
e
a
n
s
 o
f 
a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
re
a
s
. 
 T
h
is
 i
n
 i
ts
e
lf
 a
d
d
s
 a
n
 e
x
tr
a
 

la
y
e
r 
o
f 
c
o
m
p
le
x
it
y
, 
b
u
t 
it
 
is
 
v
ie
w
e
d
 
a
s
 
e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
in
 
d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 
th
e
 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 
F
o
r 
th
is
 
re
a
s
o
n
 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 

Page 26



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 5
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 d
im
e
n
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 b
u
ilt
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
ra
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 b
e
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
ly
 

fo
r 
e
a
c
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
. 

M
a
n
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 o
r 
re
fo
c
u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 s
tr
e
a
m
lin
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 v
e
rs
io
n
. 
 I
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
, 
th
e
 s
ta
tu
s
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

T
h
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 P
la
n
 a
im
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
v
is
ib
le
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 o
v
e
r 
a
 t
w
o
 a
n
d
 a
 h
a
lf
 y
e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 (
J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
 –
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
) 
th
ro
u
g
h
 c
re
a
ti
n
g
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 w
a
y
s
 o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
fo
c
u
s
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
, 
e
n
a
b
lin
g
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 a
s
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
th
e
 b
e
s
t.
  
T
h
is
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
 a
d
d
s
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
ta
il 
a
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
. 

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 –
 J
o
in
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
 i
s
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
to
 m
a
x
im
is
e
 e
x
p
e
rt
is
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
W
e
 w
ill
 d
e
liv
e
r 
h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 
 W
e
 w
ill
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
it
h
 g
re
a
te
r 
m
a
rk
e
t 
in
te
lli
g
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
o
f 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 m
a
x
im
is
e
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
. 
 T
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
ll 
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
w
e
 w
ill
 p
u
t 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
t 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 o
f 
a
ll 
w
e
 d
o
. 
 

T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 n
e
w
 p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 f
o
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
, 
a
g
re
e
d
 t
h
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 f
o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
, 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-

m
a
k
in
g
 a
n
d
 b
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
fa
m
ili
e
s
.  
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
: 

G
o
o
d
 
s
ta

ff
, 

w
o
rk

in
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
, 

th
a
t 

a
re

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 
in

 
th

e
ir
 
d
u
ti
e
s
 
b
y
 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 
a
n
d
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
, 
h
e
lp

in
g
 t
h
e
m

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
in

g
 s

u
re

 w
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
, 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 

m
a
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
. 

E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 –
 W
e
 w
ill
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 s
a
fe
ty
 a
n
d
 w
e
llb
e
in
g
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 

th
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 s
ta
g
e
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
ir
 l
o
w
e
r 
le
v
e
l 
n
e
e
d
s
. 
 W
it
h
 a
 s
e
a
m
le
s
s
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 t
ie
rs
 o
f 
n
e
e
d
, 
w
e
 

w
ill
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
o
s
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 w
h
o
s
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 d
o
 e
s
c
a
la
te
 c
a
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
. 
 

T
h
ro
u
g
h
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
e
 w
ill
 p
u
t 
th
e
 c
h
ild
’s
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
t 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 o
f 
a
ll 
w
e
 d
o
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 r
o
le
.  
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
: 

A
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
a
n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 t
h
a
t 
fa

m
ili
e
s
 a

re
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 
to

 
re

d
u
c
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 o

n
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 h

a
v
e
, 
o
r 

a
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
, 
th

e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
k
ill
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 

a
n
d
 a

re
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.  

L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 
&
 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 
–
 
T
h
e
 
L
o
c
a
l 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
C
h
ild
re
n
 
B
o
a
rd
 
(L
S
C
B
) 
h
a
s
 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 
fo
r 
p
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
. 
 T
h
e
 n
e
w
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 T
ru
s
t 
re
fl
e
c
ts
 t
h
e
 

re
n
e
w
e
d
 c
lo
s
e
r 
w
o
rk
in
g
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
n
d
 f
u
lf
ils
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 M
o
re
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 i
t 
s
ig
n
a
ls
 a
 r
e
n
e
w
e
d
 

Page 27



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 6
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 

c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
f 
th
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
re
g
a
rd
le
s
s
 o
f 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 o
r 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l.
  
 T
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 T
ru
s
t 
is
 o
n
e
 

e
le
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 (
H
S
P
).
  

W
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 p
la
y
 a
 k
e
y
 r
o
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 M
e
m
b
e
r 
G
ro
u
p
, 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
u
r 
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 
c
h
ild
re
n
 
a
n
d
 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
. 
 
T
h
e
 
‘S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
P
o
lic
y
 
&
 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
P
a
n
e
l’ 
re
v
ie
w
s
 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
in
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
: 

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 t
h
a
t 

is
 v

is
ib

le
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

; 
o
w

n
in

g
, 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr
a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 c

la
ri
ty

 o
f 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili
ty

 t
h
a
t 
d
e
liv

e
rs

 h
ig

h
 p

e
rf
o
rm

in
g
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 &
 S
ta
ff
in
g
 –
 W
e
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 o
u
r 
s
ta
ff
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
o
 b
u
ild
 a
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
e
te
n
t 
w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 i
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 s
k
ill
s
, 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
, 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 

w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
, 
a
n
d
 
a
tt
ra
c
ti
n
g
 
th
e
 
v
e
ry
 
b
e
s
t 
in
 
th
e
 
s
e
c
to
r 
to
 
th
e
 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 
o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 
in
 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 
 
P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
, 
w
ill
 w
o
rk
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
s
 p
la
c
e
d
 

o
n
 e
a
c
h
 a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
h
ild
 i
s
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 b
y
 o
u
r 
s
k
ill
e
d
 a
n
d
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
a
b
le
 s
ta
ff
. 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
: 

A
 m

o
ti
v
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
p
e
o
p
le

, 
d
o
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
th

in
g
 a

t 
th

e
 r

ig
h
t 
ti
m

e
 w

it
h
in

 c
le

a
r 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
-m

a
k
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
–
 W
e
 n
e
e
d
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 a
n
d
 m
e
a
s
u
re
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 p
o
o
r 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 
 H
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
 s
h
a
re
d
 v
a
lu
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
, 
w
ill
 r
a
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

o
f 
a
ll 
o
u
r 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
. 
 W
e
 w
ill
 m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
o
s
e
 t
o
 w
h
o
m
 w
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
re
 

a
b
le
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
g
re
a
te
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 
th
a
n
 
e
v
e
r 
b
e
fo
re
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
fi
rm
 
th
e
 
q
u
a
lit
y
 
o
f 
w
h
a
t 
w
e
 
d
o
. 
 W
e
 
w
ill
 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 
m
o
re
 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
h
o
w
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
e
e
l 
a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
. 
 T
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 T
ru
s
t 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 w
ill
 m
a
k
e
 s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 s
e
t 
a
n
d
 m
e
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
: 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
s
 c

le
a
rl
y
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

n
d
 s

e
e
n
 t
o
 b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
, 
w

it
h
 p

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 u

s
e
d
 

to
 d

ri
v
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 v

ig
ila

n
tl
y
, 
tr
a
n
s
p
a
re

n
tl
y
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

. 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
tr
e
a
m
lin
e
d
, 
re
c
o
g
n
is
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 e
x
tr
a
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

P
la
n
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
e
re
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
t 
th
e
 t
im
e
, 
a
re
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 d
e
g
re
e
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 m
a
d
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 

d
ri
v
e
 t
h
is
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t.
  
T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 T
o
w
a
rd
s
 E
x
c
e
lle
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
, 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 T
ru
s
t,
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 

Page 28



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 7
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 &
 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 
P
a
n
e
l 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
L
o
c
a
l 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
C
h
ild
re
n
 
B
o
a
rd
 
(L
S
C
B
).
 
 
T
h
e
 
re
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 
w
ill
 
a
ls
o
 
re
p
o
rt
 
th
e
ir
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
. 
  
 

T
h
e
 s
m
a
ll 
g
ro
u
p
 o
f 
c
h
ie
f 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 k
e
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 P
la
n
 i
s
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 d
ri
v
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
n
 a
 d
a
y
-t
o
-d
a
y
 b
a
s
is
. 
 T
h
is
 g
ro
u
p
 c
o
m
p
ri
s
e
s
: 
C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,
 D
e
p
u
ty
 D
ir
e
c
to
r,
 C
h
ild
re
n
 &
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
, 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 –
 P
e
o
p
le
 &
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 N
H
S
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
, 
B
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
m
m
a
n
d
e
r 
M
e
tr
o
p
o
lit
a
n
 P
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il.
  
T
h
is
 s
m
a
lle
r 
g
ro
u
p
 i
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
o
v
e
rs
e
e
in
g
 d
a
y
 t
o
 d
a
y
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 P
la
n
, 
a
n
d
 m
e
e
ts
 t
w
ic
e
 p
e
r 
m
o
n
th
. 
 T
h
is
 c
o
re
 g
ro
u
p
 

w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
 o
f 
th
e
m
e
 l
e
a
d
s
, 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 e
le
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
la
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 p
la
n
 a
s
 a
 w
h
o
le
. 

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 t
h
is
 g
ro
u
p
, 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 T
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 s
tr
e
a
m
lin
e
d
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
th
a
t 
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 w
it
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 
d
e
tr
a
c
ti
n
g
 
fr
o
m
 
d
e
liv
e
ry
. 
 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 
to
 
b
e
 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
m
ile
s
to
n
e
 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 
a
n
d
 
o
v
e
ra
ll 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
n
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
a
c
ti
o
n
. 
 E
a
c
h
 m
ile
s
to
n
e
 h
a
s
 a
 n
a
m
e
d
 l
e
a
d
, 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 u
p
d
a
te
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

m
ile
s
to
n
e
s
 f
e
e
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 
 A
 s
m
a
ll 
s
e
t 
o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
, 
le
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
te
rm
. 
  

In
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 k
e
e
p
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
 f
re
s
h
, 
re
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 p
o
lit
ic
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
, 
a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 m
e
e
t 
o
u
r 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 o
f 
b
e
in
g
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 

a
s
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
th
e
 b
e
s
t,
 w
e
 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
 o
n
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
b
a
s
is
. 
 T
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
, 
th
e
 
s
te
e
ri
n
g
 
g
ro
u
p
 
w
ill
 
a
p
p
ro
v
e
 
a
 
re
fr
e
s
h
 
o
f 
th
e
 
p
la
n
 
o
n
 
a
 
q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 
b
a
s
is
 
fo
r 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
T
o
w
a
rd
s
 
E
x
c
e
lle
n
c
e
 
B
o
a
rd
. 
 
T
h
is
 
w
ill
 
in
c
lu
d
e
 
th
e
 
m
ile
s
to
n
e
s
, 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 
a
n
d
 
ta
rg
e
ts
. 
 
It
 
is
 
th
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 s
e
t 
a
re
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
tl
y
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 a
m
b
it
io
n
, 
w
h
ils
t 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 r
e
s
ts
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 l
e
a
d
 o
ff
ic
e
r.
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

A
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 m
ile
s
to
n
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 p
la
n
, 
a
 m
a
n
a
g
e
a
b
le
 s
e
t 
o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 /
 s
y
s
te
m
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
. 
 M
o
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 k
e
y
 

in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 a
re
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
ro
m
, 
o
r 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
, 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
re
a
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
(L
A
A
).
  
T
h
e
 o
th
e
r 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 u
s
e
d
 a
re
 d
ra
w
n
 f
ro
m
: 
 

•
 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

•
 
S
ta
ff
in
g
 /
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 H
e
a
lt
h
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

A
s
 a
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
is
 s
ta
g
e
 o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 P
la
n
, 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
 o
f 
th
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 u
s
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

T
ru
s
t,
 L
S
C
B
 a
n
d
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
, 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 i
s
 s
tr
e
a
m
lin
e
d
, 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 a
n
d
 a
lig
n
e
d
 w
it
h
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

Page 29



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 8
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
, 
re
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 o
n
 a
 m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
. 
 A
t 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 

ti
m
e
, 
w
e
 w
ill
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
lia
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
d
a
ta
 i
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 d
ri
v
e
 g
e
n
u
in
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 c
o
m
p
ri
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 l
iv
e
 a
t 
J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
0
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
. 
 E
a
c
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

a
lig
n
e
d
 
to
 
o
n
e
 
o
f 
th
e
 
fi
v
e
 
th
e
m
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
ill
 
h
e
lp
 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
 
th
e
 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 
s
e
t 
o
u
t 
fo
r 
e
a
c
h
 
th
e
m
e
 
a
s
 
w
e
ll 
a
s
 
b
u
ild
in
g
 
o
n
 
th
e
 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

fo
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 p
la
n
, 
e
n
a
b
lin
g
 o
u
r 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t.
 

  G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

H
ig
h
 
q
u
a
lit
y
 
te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 

u
s
e
d
 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 
to
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
ta
ff
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 d
a
y
-

to
-d
a
y
 w
o
rk
 

2
.0
8
 
U
s
e
 

n
e
w
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 m
o
b
ile
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 

to
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
ta
ff
 

in
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

•
 
M
o
b
ile
 
te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 
p
la
n
 
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 
 
&
 
a
ll 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
to
 

p
o
o
le
d
 m
o
b
ile
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
R
A
S
 

k
e
y
s
 

•
 
Id
e
n
ti
fy
 
w
h
ic
h
 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 
C
e
n
tr
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
F
W
-I
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 

•
 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 
C
e
n
tr
e
s
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
to
 
h
o
s
t 
a
n
d
 
s
e
t 

u
p
 w
it
h
 F
W
I 

•
 
Id
e
n
ti
fy
 
o
th
e
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 
te
a
m
s
 
/ 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

re
q
u
ir
in
g
 F
W
-I
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

•
 
Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 
p
la
n
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
to
 
m
e
e
t 
th
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 n
e
e
d
 

•
 
U
s
e
rs
 
w
h
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
2
4
 
h
o
u
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
to
 
c
h
ild
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 e
a
c
h
 A
&
E
 a
n
d
 

w
a
lk
 i
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
 

•
 
P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
th
a
t 
G
P
s
 

a
re
 
k
e
e
p
in
g
 
re
c
o
rd
s
 
o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 
a
 

c
h
ild
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 u
p
 t
o
 d
a
te
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm
in
g
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 s
e
e
n
 t
h
a
t 
p
a
ti
e
n
t 
if
 

th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
 

M
a
r 
1
0
 

   M
a
y
 1
0
 

 M
a
y
 1
0
 

 M
a
y
 1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
  

 M
a
y
 1
0
 

  M
a
y
 1
0
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

   M
a
y
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

  J
u
l 
1
0
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

   S
a
ra
h
 B
a
rt
e
r 

 J
a
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

 R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

 R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

 K
a
re
n
 

B
a
g
g
a
le
y
 

 K
a
re
n
 

B
a
g
g
a
le
y
 

 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 
a
n
d
 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 

fo
r 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 
is
 
in
 

p
la
c
e
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

2
.0
9
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 
fo
r 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 
w
o
rk
in
g
 
a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 
to
 
im
p
ro
v
e
 

h
o
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

m
o
s
t 
c
o
m
p
le
x
 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 
a
n
d
 

•
 
R
e
fr
e
s
h
 
o
f 
th
e
 
J
o
in
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 
N
e
e
d
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

•
 
In
it
ia
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 
fo
r 
jo
in
t 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 
/ 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

A
p
r 
1
1
 

  O
c
t 
0
9
 

 

J
u
n
 1
1
 

  J
u
l 
1
0
 

 

Ia
n
 B
a
ile
y
 

  Ia
n
 B
a
ile
y
 

 

 

Page 30



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 9
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 
v
a
lu
e
 
fo
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 

•
 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
to
 
s
u
s
ta
in
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
g
re
e
d
 

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 r
o
lli
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

re
v
ie
w
s
 
to
 
a
d
d
re
s
s
 
w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
, 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 
a
n
d
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

•
 
Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
re
v
ie
w
s
 a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
s
 f
ir
s
t 

A
p
r 
1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

  O
c
t 
1
0
 

S
e
p
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

  D
e
c
 1
1
 

Ia
n
 B
a
ile
y
 

 C
la
ir
e
 W
ri
g
h
t 

  C
la
ir
e
 W
ri
g
h
t 

 

A
n
 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 
u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 
le
a
d
in
g
 
to
 
a
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 
in
 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 
fo
r 

ta
rg
e
te
d
 
a
n
d
 
s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

2
.1
0
 
W
o
rk
 
w
it
h
 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 
a
n
d
 

s
e
tt
in
g
s
, 
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L
S
C
B
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
in
 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

F
o
ru
m
 
to
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
 
c
le
a
r 

s
e
t 
o
f 
e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
 
o
f 

u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
 

jo
in
t 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 
o
f 

th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 
fo
r 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
to
 

ta
rg
e
te
d
 
a
n
d
 
s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

•
 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
d
 

•
 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 

•
 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
s
ig
n
e
d
 o
ff
 w
it
h
 e
a
c
h
 H
e
a
d
te
a
c
h
e
r 

•
 
D
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 
te
a
c
h
e
rs
 
g
ro
u
p
 
/ 
n
e
tw
o
rk
 
s
e
t 
u
p
 

a
s
 
v
e
h
ic
le
 
fo
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 
o
f 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

v
io
le
n
c
e
  

•
 
N
o
m
in
a
te
d
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 c
h
a
m
p
io
n
 f
ro
m
 

e
a
c
h
 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
jo
in
e
d
 
th
e
 
d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 
te
a
c
h
e
r 

g
ro
u
p
 /
 n
e
tw
o
rk
  

•
 
D
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 t
e
a
c
h
e
r 
g
ro
u
p
 /
 n
e
tw
o
rk
 e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 

to
 
in
c
lu
d
e
 
p
ri
v
a
te
 
s
e
c
to
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
n
u
rs
e
ri
e
s
, 

s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 e
tc
. 
 

F
e
b
 0
9
 

S
e
p
 0
9
 

S
e
p
 0
9
 

M
a
y
 1
0
 

   M
a
y
 1
0
 

  J
u
l 
1
0
 

S
e
p
 0
9
 

S
e
p
 0
9
 

A
p
r 
1
0
 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

   J
u
l 
1
0
 

  O
c
t 
1
0
 

J
a
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

J
a
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

J
a
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

  M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

 M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

 

Page 31



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 1
0
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
f 

a
 
h
ig
h
 
q
u
a
lit
y
 
a
re
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

3
.0
3
 
Im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 

“b
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
” 
in
 
id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
, 

a
s
s
e
s
s
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 

ri
s
k
  

•
 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
o
f 

o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 
w
it
h
 
a
d
u
lt
s
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
to
 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

a
re
a
s
 o
f 
m
u
tu
a
l 
in
te
re
s
t 

•
 
R
is
k
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
to
 

e
n
s
u
re
 
in
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 
c
h
ild
re
n
 
&
 

fa
m
ili
e
s
, 
a
d
u
lt
s
, 
p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

•
 
R
is
k
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

•
 
S
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 
a
n
d
 
C
R
A
M
 
/ 
R
A
R
A
 
fo
llo
w
-u
p
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
lig
n
e
d
 

•
 
S
y
s
te
m
a
ti
c
 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 
fo
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
n
g
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 
fr
o
m
 
S
e
ri
o
u
s
 
C
a
s
e
 
R
e
v
ie
w
s
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
  
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

•
 
B
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
fo
r 
w
o
rk
in
g
 
w
it
h
 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

v
io
le
n
c
e
 c
a
s
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
  

•
 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 
o
f 
th
e
 
M
u
lt
i-
A
g
e
n
c
y
 
R
is
k
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 (
M
A
R
A
C
) 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 

•
 
R
is
k
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
lig
n
e
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

a
n
d
 
a
d
u
lt
s
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
h
o
lis
ti
c
 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 
a
n
d
 

fl
o
w
 o
f 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
  

M
a
y
 1
0
 

  J
u
n
 1
0
 

  S
e
p
 1
0
 

 M
a
y
 1
0
 

 M
a
y
 1
0
 

  A
p
r 
1
0
 

 M
a
y
 1
0
 

 M
a
y
 1
0
 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

  O
c
t 
1
0
 

  N
o
v
 1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

  A
u
g
 1
0
 

 O
c
t 
1
0
 

 O
c
t 
1
0
 

M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

 M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

 M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

S
y
lv
ia
 C
h
e
w
 

 R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

  D
e
ir
d
re
 C
re
g
a
n
  

 M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

 

Page 32



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 1
1
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 
fo
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
 &
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

in
 a
 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s
e
tt
in
g
 

3
.0
4
 
F
W
-I
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
to
 
re
c
o
rd
 

a
n
d
 
m
o
n
it
o
r 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 
to
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
a
n
d
 
e
m
b
e
d
 
b
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
. 
  

•
 
U
s
e
 
o
f 
F
W
-I
 
e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 
to
 
C
h
ild
re
n
 
in
 
C
a
re
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 
o
f 
C
A
F
 
a
n
d
 
C
h
ild
re
n
 
in
 
N
e
e
d
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
  

•
 
S
y
s
te
m
 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 
to
 
s
h
a
re
 
Y
o
u
th
 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 F
W
-I
 

•
 
O
th
e
r 
lin
k
a
g
e
s
 
fo
r 
F
W
-I
 
d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

•
 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 

•
 
In
it
ia
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
re
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
F
W
-I
 f
o
rm
s
 m
a
d
e
 

m
o
re
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 

•
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 
tr
a
in
e
d
, 
a
s
 
p
a
rt
 
o
f 
s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

tr
a
in
in
g
, 
in
 u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 f
o
rm
s
 

•
 
N
e
w
 
fo
rm
s
 
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 
a
n
d
 
u
ti
lis
e
d
 
b
y
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
  

•
 
C
a
s
e
 
fi
le
 
a
u
d
it
 
to
o
l 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 
to
 
in
c
lu
d
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 U
s
e
 o
f 
F
W
-I
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 

to
 a
ll 
k
e
y
 t
e
a
m
s
 (
n
a
m
e
 t
e
a
m
s
 h
e
re
) 

•
 
F
W
-I
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
to
 
m
e
e
t 
b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
  

•
 
F
W
-I
 
C
h
ild
 
P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 
c
o
re
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

te
m
p
la
te
s
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 

•
 
F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 
M
u
lt
i-
A
g
e
n
c
y
 
T
e
a
m
 
IC
S
 

s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

•
 
F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 M
A
T
 r
e
fl
e
c
te
d
 i
n
 F
W
-I
 a
n
d
 i
ts
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

O
c
t 
0
9
 

 N
o
v
 0
9
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 A
p
r 
1
0
 

 A
p
r 
1
0
  

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

 A
p
r 
1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

 

A
p
r 
1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 M
a
r 
1
1
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
1
 

 M
a
r 
1
2
 

 ?
 
 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 ?
 
 

M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

 C
la
ir
e
 W
ri
g
h
t 

 R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

 R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

 R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

 R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

 S
y
lv
ia
 C
h
e
w
 

 R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

  R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

 R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

 R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

 R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

IC
S
 C
o
re
lo
g
ic
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 Page 33



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 1
2
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 
fo
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
 &
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

in
 a
 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s
e
tt
in
g
 

3
.0
5
 
F
ir
s
t 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 
M
u
lt
i-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 
te
a
m
 
in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 

a
n
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

•
 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 
c
re
a
te
 
m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 
te
a
m
 
o
f 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
&
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 
h
e
a
lt
h
 
a
n
d
 

M
P
S
 C
A
IT
 

•
 
P
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
lig
n
e
d
 

•
 
P
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 

•
 
A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
 c
o
-l
o
c
a
te
d
 

•
 
S
ta
ff
 t
ra
in
e
d
 i
n
 n
e
w
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
n
d
 

m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
e
a
m
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

•
 
F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 
M
A
T
 
ro
le
 
in
 
a
u
d
it
 
a
n
d
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

•
 
J
o
in
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 
w
it
h
 

A
d
u
lt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
C
A
M
H
S
 a
n
d
 D
ru
g
 a
n
d
 A
lc
o
h
o
l 

T
e
a
m
. 

•
 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 
p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
in
to
 
a
 
s
in
g
le
 
p
ro
to
c
o
l 
a
c
ro
s
s
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 &
 a
d
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 
In
te
g
ra
te
d
 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 
in
 
lig
h
t 
o
f 

e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
e
a
m
 

S
e
p
 0
9
 

  S
e
p
 0
9
 

M
a
r 
1
0
 

J
a
n
 1
0
 

A
p
r 
1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

  J
u
n
 1
0
 

   N
o
v
 1
0
 

 

D
e
c
 0
9
 

  M
a
r 
1
0
 

S
e
p
 1
0
 

A
p
r 
1
0
 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 O
c
t 
1
0
 

  S
e
p
 1
0
 

   D
e
c
 1
0
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 

  D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 

M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

S
y
lv
ia
 C
h
e
w
 

  S
y
lv
ia
 C
h
e
w
 

   M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 G
ro
u
p
 

C
u
tt
in
g
 
e
d
g
e
 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

v
io
le
n
c
e
 
w
o
rk
 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

w
it
h
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

A
 

In
te
g
ra
ti
n
g
 
“b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
” 

d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 
v
io
le
n
c
e
 
w
o
rk
 
to
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
 c
h
ild
re
n
 &
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 

•
 
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 
fo
r 
lin
k
in
g
 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 
v
io
le
n
c
e
 

w
o
rk
 
a
n
d
 
fl
o
w
 
o
f 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
 
a
d
u
lt
s
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
  

•
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
o
n
 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

v
io
le
n
c
e
 t
h
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
ri
a
n
g
le
 m
o
d
e
l 

•
 
4
 
lu
n
c
h
ti
m
e
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 
o
n
 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

v
io
le
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

•
 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 
fo
r 
ro
ll 
o
u
t 
o
f 
B
a
rn
a
rd
o
’s
 
R
is
k
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
g
re
e
d
 

•
 
M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
fo
r 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 
lin
k
a
g
e
 

w
it
h
 
a
d
u
lt
s
 
o
n
 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

M
a
y
 1
0
 

  M
a
y
 1
0
 

 M
a
y
 1
0
 

 M
a
y
 1
0
 

 M
a
y
 1
0
 

  

J
u
n
 1
0
 

  J
u
l 
1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

  

D
e
ir
d
re
 C
re
g
a
n
 

  D
e
ir
d
re
 C
re
g
a
n
 

 D
e
ir
d
re
 C
re
g
a
n
 

 D
e
ir
d
re
 C
re
g
a
n
 

 M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

L
S
C
B
 

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 S
u
b
-

G
ro
u
p
 

Page 34



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 1
3
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

C
le
a
r 
lin
k
a
g
e
 
a
n
d
 
re
a
d
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 
c
a
s
e
 

fi
le
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 

th
e
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

in
 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 
a
n
d
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

B
 

C
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 
to
 

re
c
o
rd
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
in
 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 f
ile
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
  

•
 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 c
o
n
te
n
ts
 /
 f
o
rm
a
t 
fo
r 
in
c
lu
s
io
n
 i
n
 a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
a
s
e
 f
ile
s
 a
g
re
e
d
  

•
 
Q
u
a
lit
y
 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 
/ 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
  

•
 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 P
la
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

•
 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 c
o
n
te
n
ts
 /
 f
o
rm
a
t 
fo
r 
in
c
lu
s
io
n
 i
n
 a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
a
s
e
 f
ile
s
 a
g
re
e
d
  

•
 
Q
u
a
lit
y
 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 
/ 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
  

•
 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 P
la
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

M
a
y
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 J
a
n
 1
1
 

 M
a
y
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 J
a
n
 1
1
 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
1
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
1
 

J
o
h
n
 E
d
w
a
rd
s
 

 J
o
h
n
 E
d
w
a
rd
s
 

 J
o
h
n
 E
d
w
a
rd
s
 

 K
a
re
n
 

B
a
g
g
a
le
y
 

K
a
re
n
 

B
a
g
g
a
le
y
 

K
a
re
n
 

B
a
g
g
a
le
y
 

 

C
h
ild
re
n
 
a
n
d
 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
’s
 
v
o
ic
e
 
is
 
h
e
a
rd
 

a
n
d
 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 
to
 
in
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

C
 

E
n
s
u
re
 
th
a
t 
c
h
ild
re
n
 
a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 

a
re
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

th
e
ir
 
v
ie
w
s
 
a
re
 
h
e
a
rd
 
in
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

•
 
M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 h
e
a
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 

re
c
o
rd
in
g
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 v
ie
w
s
 

a
t 
in
it
ia
l 
a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 

•
 
M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
th
a
t 

c
h
ild
re
n
 
a
n
d
 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
 
v
ie
w
s
 
a
t 
in
it
ia
l 

a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 a
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 h
e
a
rd
 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
fo
r 

th
e
 
a
b
o
v
e
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

•
 
S
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 

o
f 
th
e
 L
S
C
B
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

•
 
C
h
ild
’s
 
C
h
a
m
p
io
n
 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 f
o
r 
c
a
s
e
 c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 

•
 
W
o
rk
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 F
a
m
ily
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

to
 l
e
a
rn
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
s
 o
f 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 w
h
o
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
 c
h
ild
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
  

•
 
S
u
it
e
 
o
f 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
fo
r 
g
a
in
in
g
 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

fr
o
m
 
c
h
ild
re
n
 
a
n
d
 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
a
t 
v
a
ry
in
g
 

s
ta
g
e
s
 
o
f 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 
(t
o
 
in
c
lu
d
e
 
H
a
v
e
 
Y
o
u
r 
S
a
y
 

le
a
fl
e
ts
, 
c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 v
is
it
s
 a
n
d
 p
o
s
t-
c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
) 

•
 
M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
fo
r 
re
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 
to
 
v
ie
w
s
 
a
n
d
 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

•
 
M
P
S
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 
w
h
e
th
e
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 
fr
o
m
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 
a
n
d
 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
a
ft
e
r 
A
B
E
 

in
te
rv
ie
w
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 s
o
u
g
h
t 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

  O
c
t 
1
0
 

  D
e
c
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

 M
a
y
 1
0
 

  J
u
n
 1
0
 

     S
e
p
 1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

S
e
p
 1
0
 

  D
e
c
 1
0
 

  J
a
n
 1
1
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

  D
e
c
 1
0
 

     D
e
c
 1
0
 

 O
c
t 
1
0
 

  

D
e
b
b
ie
 H
a
it
h
 

  D
e
b
b
ie
 H
a
it
h
 

  M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

S
y
lv
ia
 C
h
e
w
 

 S
y
lv
ia
 C
h
e
w
 

  M
a
ri
o
n
  

W
h
e
e
le
r 

    D
e
b
b
ie
 H
a
it
h
 

 G
ra
h
a
m
 D
e
a
n
 

 

L
S
C
B
 B
e
s
t 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 S
u
b
-

G
ro
u
p
 

Page 35



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 1
4
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

 
E
n
s
u
re
 
th
a
t 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 
fr
o
m
 

p
a
re
n
ts
 
a
n
d
 
c
a
re
rs
 
is
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
c
te
d
 o
n
 

 

•
 
M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
fo
r 
g
a
th
e
ri
n
g
 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 
fr
o
m
 

p
a
re
n
ts
 
a
n
d
 
c
a
re
rs
 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 
in
 
lig
h
t 
o
f 
b
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

•
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
fo
r 
g
a
th
e
ri
n
g
 
a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 o
n
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

•
 
L
o
g
 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 
m
a
d
e
 
a
s
 
a
 

re
s
u
lt
 
o
f 
u
s
e
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 f
o
r 
o
n
g
o
in
g
 u
s
e
 

M
a
y
 1
0
 

  A
u
g
 1
0
 

 O
c
t 
1
0
 

J
u
ly
 1
0
 

  O
c
t 
1
0
 

 O
c
t 
1
0
 

Ia
in
 L
o
w
 

  Ia
in
 L
o
w
 

 Ia
in
 L
o
w
 

 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

c
ro
s
s
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
w
o
rk
in
g
 
a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

D
 

E
n
s
u
re
 
th
a
t 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 
to
 

re
fe
rr
e
rs
 
is
 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 
in
 
a
 

ti
m
e
ly
 
a
n
d
 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

m
a
n
n
e
r 

•
 S
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
o
 r
e
fe
rr
e
rs
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

•
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 
o
f 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 
w
it
h
in
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 

•
 E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 
o
f 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

M
a
y
 1
0
 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

M
a
y
 1
0
 

A
u
g
 1
0
 

 O
c
t 
1
0
 

S
y
lv
ia
 C
h
e
w
 

S
y
lv
ia
 C
h
e
w
 

 S
y
lv
ia
 C
h
e
w
 

 

T
im
e
ly
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 
te
a
m
s
 
e
n
s
u
re
s
 

n
o
 
b
re
a
k
 
in
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 

E
 

D
e
la
y
s
 
in
 
tr
a
n
s
fe
rs
 
a
re
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
re
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

•
 
P
ro
to
c
o
l 
a
n
d
 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 
fo
r 
ti
m
e
ly
 
a
n
d
 

s
m
o
o
th
 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 
c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

te
a
m
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
  

•
 
C
a
s
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
s
u
m
m
a
ry
 e
le
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 A
u
d
it
 

T
o
o
l 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 n
e
w
 v
e
rs
io
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

•
 
Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 
H
e
a
d
s
 
o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 
to
 
re
v
ie
w
 
c
a
s
e
 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
d
ri
v
e
 
fo
rw
a
rd
 
c
a
s
e
s
 
w
h
e
re
 

tr
a
n
s
fe
rs
 a
re
 d
e
la
y
e
d
 

•
 
S
ta
ff
in
g
 l
e
v
e
ls
 i
n
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 t
e
a
m
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
  

•
 
P
ro
c
e
s
s
 
m
ile
s
to
n
e
s
 
fo
r 
a
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
in
g
 
/ 

u
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
 w
ri
tt
e
n
 

A
p
r 
1
0
 

  M
a
y
 1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

   J
u
n
 1
0
 

A
p
r 
1
0
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

  J
u
l 
1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

   D
e
c
 1
0
 

M
a
y
 1
0
 

Ia
in
 L
o
w
 

  M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

  M
a
ri
o
n
 W
h
e
e
le
r 
 

S
y
lv
ia
 C
h
e
w
 

 

M
o
re
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 c
h
ild
re
n
 

a
n
d
 
y
o
u
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
a
re
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
e
d
 

G
 

L
e
a
d
 
th
e
 
w
a
y
 
in
 
h
o
w
 
w
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 
a
n
d
 
a
s
s
is
t 
th
o
s
e
 

w
h
o
 a
re
 m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 i
n
 

g
a
n
g
s
 

•
 
E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
th
e
 
G
a
n
g
s
 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

G
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 1
4
-1
8
 

y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
u
tt
in
g
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 

b
y
 b
e
in
g
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
 g
a
n
g
 

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
n
d
 
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 
fo
r 

w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 k
n
o
w
n
 g
a
n
g
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
  

•
 
P
ro
to
c
o
ls
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
fo
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 
o
n
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 
w
it
h
 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 
c
h
ild
re
n
 
a
n
d
 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 g
a
n
g
s
 

?
 
   ?
 
 ?
 

?
 
   ?
 
 ?
 

A
id
a
n
 G
ib
s
o
n
 

 

Page 36



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 1
5
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

H
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

h
e
a
lt
h
 
p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 
in
 

c
o
m
p
le
x
 c
a
s
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

•
 
Id
e
n
ti
fy
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
a
t 

c
o
m
p
le
x
 c
a
s
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

•
 
T
ri
a
l 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
a
m
e
d
 
o
r 
d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 

n
u
rs
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 
o
f 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 

p
re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 e
s
c
a
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 

•
 
A
m
e
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 

o
f 
th
e
 t
ri
a
ls
 i
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

 A
u
g
 1
0
 

 O
c
t 
1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

A
u
g
 1
0
 

 O
c
t 
1
0
 

 N
o
v
 1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

K
a
re
n
 

B
a
g
g
a
le
y
 

 

I 
G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 b
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

c
la
ri
fy
in
g
 
w
h
a
t 
a
n
d
 
w
h
e
n
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 

in
 

c
h
ild
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 
c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 
w
ill
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

•
 
C
ri
te
ri
a
 
fo
r 
h
e
a
lt
h
 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 
c
h
ild
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

•
 
C
ri
te
ri
a
 
fo
r 
h
e
a
lt
h
 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 
c
h
ild
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

•
 
G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
ta
ff
 

•
 
M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
fo
r 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

b
u
ilt
 

in
to
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
  

•
 
In
it
ia
l 
a
u
d
it
 
o
f 
c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 
w
it
h
in
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

•
 
In
it
ia
l 
a
u
d
it
 
o
f 
c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 
w
it
h
in
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

A
p
r 
1
0
 

 A
p
r 
1
0
 

 A
u
g
 1
0
 

O
c
t 
1
0
 

  D
e
c
 1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
] 

 A
u
g
 1
0
 

N
o
v
 1
0
 

  F
e
b
 1
1
 

 F
e
b
 1
1
 

D
a
v
id
 E
lli
m
a
n
 

 J
o
h
n
 E
d
w
a
rd
s
 

 D
e
b
b
ie
 H
a
it
h
 

D
e
b
b
ie
 H
a
it
h
 

  B
ri
d
g
e
t 
O
w
e
n
 

 J
o
h
n
 E
d
w
a
rd
s
 

 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 
re
lia
n
c
e
 
o
n
 

le
g
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 

th
e
 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

ro
b
u
s
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 
a
t 

a
n
 e
a
rl
ie
r 
s
ta
g
e
 

J
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 
u
s
a
g
e
 
o
f 
le
g
a
l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

•
 
M
ile
s
to
n
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 a
ro
u
n
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 

L
P
M
s
, 
p
re
-m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
, 
e
tc
 a
n
d
 l
e
g
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

a
v
o
id
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
c
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
s
c
a
la
te
  

?
 

?
 

D
o
ro
th
y
 S
im
o
n
 

(M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
) 

 

 E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

T
im
e
ly
 
a
n
d
 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 

re
fe
rr
a
ls
 a
re
 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 o
f 
n
e
e
d
  

2
.0
5
 
A
ll 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

C
e
n
tr
e
s
, 

c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
h
e
a
lt
h
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 
w
ill
 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 

a
 C
A
F
 f
o
r 
a
n
y
 c
h
ild
re
n
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 
c
o
n
s
id
e
r 

to
 
b
e
 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
, 
a
s
 
th
e
 
fi
rs
t 

s
ta
g
e
 

in
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 

•
 R
o
ll-
o
u
t 
C
A
F
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
a
ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 
a
n
d
 
o
th
e
r 

s
e
tt
in
g
s
 

•
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 e
m
b
e
d
d
in
g
 o
f 
C
A
F
 

•
 D
e
liv
e
r 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

to
 e
n
a
b
le
 e
m
b
e
d
d
in
g
 o
f 
C
A
F
 

•
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
fo
r 
C
A
F
 
in
 

p
ri
v
a
te
, 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
a
n
d
 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
(P
V
I)
 

s
e
tt
in
g
s
 

•
 D
e
liv
e
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
fo
r 
C
A
F
 
in
 

p
ri
v
a
te
, 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
a
n
d
 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
(P
V
I)
 

F
e
b
 0
9
 

 M
a
y
 1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

 J
a
n
 1
0
 

   J
u
l 
1
0
 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

   D
e
c
 1
0
 

A
lis
o
n
 B
o
th
a
m
 

 A
lis
o
n
 B
o
th
a
m
 

 A
lis
o
n
 B
o
th
a
m
 

 A
lis
o
n
 B
o
th
a
m
 

   A
lis
o
n
 B
o
th
a
m
 

 

Page 37



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 1
6
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

s
e
tt
in
g
s
 

T
im
e
ly
 
a
n
d
 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 

re
fe
rr
a
ls
 a
re
 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 o
f 
n
e
e
d
 

A
 

P
ro
v
id
e
 a
d
v
ic
e
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 
fo
r 
u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 

s
e
tt
in
g
s
 
s
o
 
th
a
t 
th
e
y
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
a
 
w
id
e
r 
ra
n
g
e
 
o
f 

n
e
e
d
 

•
 T
ra
in
in
g
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

•
 T
ra
in
in
g
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
fo
r 
u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

•
 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
o
n
 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 
th
e
 
V
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 C
o
n
v
e
rs
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

•
 
R
e
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 

V
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

C
o
n
v
e
rs
a
ti
o
n
 p
ilo
te
d
 

•
 V
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 
C
o
n
v
e
rs
a
ti
o
n
 
p
ilo
t 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
o
lle
d
 o
u
t 

•
 V
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 
c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 
c
o
n
v
e
rs
a
ti
o
n
 
u
s
e
d
 
to
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 

n
e
e
d
 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

 O
c
t 
1
0
 

 Ja
n
1
0
 

 M
a
r 
1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

 Ju
n
 1
0
 

 

O
c
t 
1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

 F
e
b
 1
0
 

 M
a
y
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

 R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

 Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

 J
a
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

 J
a
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

 Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

 

 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 j
o
in
e
d
 

u
p
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
in
 
lo
c
a
l 

a
re
a
s
 

B
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 
th
e
 
ro
le
, 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

a
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
th
e
 C
A
F
 

•
 C
A
F
 a
s
s
e
s
s
o
rs
 t
ra
in
in
g
 r
o
lle
d
-o
u
t 

•
 N
o
rt
h
 N
e
tw
o
rk
 C
A
F
 P
a
n
e
l 
p
ilo
te
d
 

•
 E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
N
o
rt
h
 N
e
tw
o
rk
 p
ilo
t 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

•
 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 
fo
r 
 

C
A
F
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
  

•
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 C
A
F
 m
e
a
s
u
re
d
  

J
u
l 
1
0
 

S
e
p
 1
0
 

J
a
n
 1
1
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

 O
c
t 
1
0
 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

D
e
c
 1
0
 

M
a
r 
1
1
 

S
e
p
 1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

A
lis
o
n
 B
o
th
a
m
  

A
lis
o
n
 B
o
th
a
m
  

A
lis
o
n
 B
o
th
a
m
 

A
lis
o
n
 B
o
th
a
m
 

 A
lis
o
n
 B
o
th
a
m
 

 

Page 38



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 1
7
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 
in
te
r-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 
le
a
d
in
g
 
to
 
a
 

m
o
re
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

a
n
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

e
a
rl
y
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

C
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

b
y
 
m
o
v
in
g
 
fr
o
m
 
M
u
lt
i-

D
is
c
ip
lin
a
ry
 
T
e
a
m
s
 
(M
D
T
) 

to
 
M
u
lt
i-
A
g
e
n
c
y
 
T
e
a
m
s
 

(M
A
T
),
 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 
w
it
h
 

p
o
ly
s
y
s
te
m
s
 

 

•
 
E
a
rl
y
 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
m
a
p
p
e
d
 
 
to
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

•
 
L
o
c
a
l 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
fo
r 
e
a
c
h
 

a
re
a
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
a
n
d
 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

p
la
n
n
e
d
 

•
 
G
P
s
 
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 
in
to
 
th
e
 
e
a
rl
y
 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 m
a
d
e
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

in
 t
h
e
ir
 a
re
a
 

•
 
U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 
o
f 
c
a
re
 
p
a
th
w
a
y
s
 
a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 

ti
e
rs
 o
f 
n
e
e
d
 e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 

•
 T
h
e
 
‘c
o
re
 
o
ff
e
r’
 
fo
r 
a
ll 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 
to
 
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 
th
e
 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 
C
h
ild
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 0
 -
 1
9
  

•
 M
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 
te
a
m
s
 
c
o
-l
o
c
a
te
d
 
w
it
h
in
 
e
a
c
h
 

a
re
a
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

•
 K
e
y
s
 t
o
 W
e
llb
e
in
g
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
te
x
t 

o
f 
a
 
m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 
e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
w
e
llb
e
in
g
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

 N
o
v
 1
0
 

  N
o
v
 1
0
 

  S
e
p
 1
0
 

 J
a
n
 1
1
 

  S
e
p
 1
0
 

 Ju
n
 1
0
 

 

D
e
c
 1
0
 

 A
p
r 
1
1
 

  D
e
c
 1
0
 

  D
e
c
 1
0
 

 A
p
r 
1
1
 

  A
u
g
 1
1
 

 ?
 

N
g
o
z
i 
A
n
u
fo
ro
 

 N
g
o
z
i 
A
n
u
fo
ro
 

  C
la
ir
e
 W
ri
g
h
t 

  N
g
o
z
i 
A
n
u
fo
ro
 

 A
lis
o
n
 B
o
th
a
m
 

  J
a
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

 H
e
a
th
e
r 

J
o
h
n
s
to
n
 

 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 
m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 
o
f 
e
a
rl
y
 
y
e
a
rs
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
w
h
ic
h
 
a
re
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 

D
 

E
m
b
e
d
 
th
e
 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 
C
h
ild
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
in
te
r-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 
w
o
rk
in
g
 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
a
n
d
 
in
te
n
s
iv
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 
C
h
ild
 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 (
0
-5
) 
a
n
d
 

a
g
re
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 

•
 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 
C
h
ild
 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
ro
lle
d
-o
u
t 
in
 
th
e
 

N
o
rt
h
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
 N
e
tw
o
rk
s
 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 C
h
ild
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 (
5
-1
9
) 

•
 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 
th
e
 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 

Y
e
a
rs
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

•
 
L
in
k
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 C
h
ild
 (
0
-5
) 
a
n
d
 (
5
-

1
9
) 
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
fo
r 

a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

A
p
r 
1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

S
e
p
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

J
u
l 
1
1
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

C
la
ir
e
 W
ri
g
h
t 

 J
a
n
e
 E
lia
s
 

 T
 E
d
m
a
n
s
 

T
 E
d
m
a
n
s
 

 C
la
ir
e
 W
ri
g
h
t 

H
e
a
lt
h
 E
a
rl
y
 

Y
e
a
rs
 C
h
ild
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

G
ro
u
p
 

V
a
lu
e
 
fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 
 
a
n
d
 

b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
d
e
liv
e
re
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

in
 

e
a
rl
y
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

E
 

A
s
 
a
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
id
e
n
ti
fy
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
to
 
d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 

E
a
rl
y
 
Y
e
a
rs
 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 

P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
F
a
m
ily
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
 

P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 
a
n
d
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

•
 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

•
 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
-

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
, 
in
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b
e
 a
m
o
n
g
s
t 

th
e
 b
e
s
t 
b
y
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 

•
 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

•
 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 
o
f 
P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
 
F
a
m
ily
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

•
 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
  

•
 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
  

J
u
n
 1
0
 

N
o
v
 1
0
 

   Ju
n
 1
0
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

 Ju
n
 1
0
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

O
c
t 
1
0
 

M
a
r 
1
1
 

   D
e
c
 1
1
 

D
e
c
 1
1
 

 D
e
c
 1
1
 

D
e
c
 1
1
 

J
a
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

J
a
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

   Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

J
a
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

 Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

J
a
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

 

Page 39



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 1
8
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
ta
rg
e
te
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

in
te
rv
e
n
in
g
 

e
a
rl
y
 
s
o
 
th
a
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 
a
re
 

m
e
t 
e
a
rl
ie
r 
a
n
d
 
w
it
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 
n
e
e
d
 
fo
r 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
. 

F
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 
th
e
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
u
m
 
o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 
a
lig
n
e
d
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
to
rs
 
o
f 

th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
u
m
 

o
f 
n
e
e
d
s
. 

•
 R
e
v
ie
w
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
  

•
 R
e
v
ie
w
 c
o
m
p
o
s
it
io
n
 o
f 
te
a
m
s
 

•
 E
n
s
u
re
 
th
a
t 
te
a
m
s
 
a
re
 
m
o
v
in
g
 
to
w
a
rd
s
 

d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 
m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 

jo
in
e
d
 u
p
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

S
e
p
 1
0
 

J
a
n
 1
1
 

S
e
p
 1
0
 

D
e
c
 1
0
 

J
u
l 
1
1
 

J
a
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

J
a
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

J
a
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

 

 

G
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
n
d
 
e
m
b
e
d
 
a
n
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 
o
f 

c
h
ild
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

w
it
h
in
 
c
h
ild
 
c
a
re
 
s
e
tt
in
g
s
, 

m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
p
ri
v
a
te
, 

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
a
n
d
 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

(P
V
I)
 

•
 C
h
ild
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 g
re
e
n
 h
a
n
d
b
o
o
k
 

c
ir
c
u
la
te
d
 t
o
 c
h
ild
 c
a
re
 s
e
tt
in
g
s
 

•
 U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
C
h
ild
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

g
re
e
n
 h
a
n
d
b
o
o
k
 e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 

J
a
n
 1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

M
a
y
 1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 

 N
g
o
z
i 
A
n
u
fo
ro
 

 
A
ll 
O
fs
te
d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 

c
h
ild
m
in
d
e
rs
 

a
n
d
  

c
h
ild
c
a
re
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 m
e
e
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
  

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

H
 

E
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

in
a
d
e
q
u
a
c
ie
s
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
b
y
 

O
fs
te
d
 
in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 
o
f 

c
h
ild
m
in
d
e
rs
 
a
n
d
 
c
h
ild
c
a
re
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 
a
re
 
a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 

•
 M
o
d
e
l 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 p
o
lic
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 a
ll 

•
 R
o
ll-
o
u
t 
o
f 
o
n
lin
e
 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
s
e
tt
in
g
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

•
 E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
tr
a
in
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
  

•
 D
e
te
rm
in
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
s
ts
 o
f 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 f
u
n
d
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
  

A
p
r 
1
0
 

M
a
y
 1
0
 

 Ju
n
 1
0
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

M
a
y
 1
0
 

D
e
c
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

S
e
p
 1
0
 

N
g
o
z
i 
A
n
u
fo
ro
 

R
o
s
 C
o
o
k
e
 

 R
o
s
 C
o
o
k
e
 

R
o
s
 C
o
o
k
e
 

 

A
ll 
O
fs
te
d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 

c
h
ild
m
in
d
e
rs
 

a
n
d
  

c
h
ild
c
a
re
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 

I 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
n
 
a
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 
fo
r 
n
o
n
–
s
c
h
o
o
l 

s
e
tt
in
g
s
 

•
 A
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
n
o
n
-

s
c
h
o
o
l 
s
e
tt
in
g
s
 

•
 A
ll 
n
o
n
-s
c
h
o
o
ls
 
s
e
tt
in
g
s
 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 
s
e
lf
-

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
a
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 A
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 v
is
it
s
 t
o
 a
ll 
s
e
tt
in
g
s
 

•
 A
c
c
re
d
it
e
d
 l
e
v
e
ls
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
s
e
tt
in
g
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 a
n
d
 

p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
  

•
 L
o
b
b
y
 
O
fs
te
d
 
fo
r 
ti
m
e
ly
 
d
e
-r
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

c
h
ild
c
a
re
 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 
th
a
t 
fa
il 
to
 
m
e
e
t 
th
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

M
a
y
 1
0
 

 N
o
v
 1
0
 

 J
a
n
 1
1
 

F
e
b
 1
1
 

 ? 

O
c
t 
1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

 J
a
n
 1
1
 

M
a
r 
1
1
 

 ? 

R
o
s
 C
o
o
k
e
 

 R
o
s
 C
o
o
k
e
 

 R
o
s
 C
o
o
k
e
 

R
o
s
 C
o
o
k
e
 

 R
o
s
 C
o
o
k
e
 

 

A
ll 
O
fs
te
d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

m
e
e
t 

th
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

J
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
n
d
 
e
m
b
e
d
 
a
n
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 
o
f 

c
h
ild
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

w
it
h
in
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

•
 C
h
ild
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 g
re
e
n
 h
a
n
d
b
o
o
k
 

c
ir
c
u
la
te
d
 t
o
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

•
 U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 
o
f 
L
S
C
B
 
c
h
ild
 
p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 g
re
e
n
 h
a
n
d
b
o
o
k
 e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 

•
 C
h
ild
re
n
 
&
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
h
o
ld
in
g
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
o
rs
 
to
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
w
h
e
re
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 
a
re
 
n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 

J
a
n
 1
0
 

 Ju
n
 1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

M
a
y
 1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
1
 

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 

 ?
 
 ?
 

 

Page 40



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 1
9
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

d
e
liv
e
re
d
 c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
 

 L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 &
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

3
.0
1
 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 
a
 
p
e
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 

fr
o
m
 
a
n
 
L
S
C
B
 
th
a
t 
h
a
s
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
 g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

•
 
L
S
C
B
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 
p
e
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 t
a
k
e
s
 p
la
c
e
 

•
 
L
e
s
s
o
n
s
 
le
a
rn
t 
a
n
d
 
a
re
a
s
 
fo
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

S
e
p
 1
0
 

N
o
v
 1
1
 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

O
c
t 
1
0
 

J
a
n
 1
1
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 

B
a
d
m
a
n
 

 
H
ig
h
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

3
.0
2
 
E
n
s
u
re
 
c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 

L
a
m
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
o
th
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 

a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

•
 
P
ro
c
e
s
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 f
o
r 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 L
a
m
in
g
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

•
 
M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 
fo
r 
fe
e
d
in
g
 
in
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
s
 

/ 
in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
g
o
o
d
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

S
e
p
 0
9
 

 ?
 
J
u
l 
1
0
 

D
e
c
 0
9
 

 ?
 
S
e
p
 1
0
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

 P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 
o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
o
f 

a
n
d
 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 
fo
r 

C
Y
P
 

b
y
 

s
e
n
io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

A
 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

C
h
a
m
p
io
n
s
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 

e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 

to
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

th
e
 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 r
o
le
 

•
 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
C
h
a
m
p
io
n
 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 
 
e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
 

•
 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
C
h
a
m
p
io
n
 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 
 
e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 T
ru
s
t 
 

A
p
r 
1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

 O
c
t 
1
0
 

M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

 

V
is
io
n
 
fo
r 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 
a
n
d
 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 
w
it
h
in
 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

is
 
u
n
d
e
rs
to
o
d
 
w
it
h
in
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

B
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 

th
e
 
v
is
io
n
 
fo
r 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

w
it
h
in
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

•
 
V
is
io
n
 
fo
r 
o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
a
g
re
e
d
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

T
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 L
S
C
B
 

•
 
V
is
io
n
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 
to
 
a
n
d
 
o
w
n
e
d
 
b
y
 
s
ta
ff
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

•
 
V
is
io
n
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 
to
 
a
n
d
 
u
n
d
e
rs
to
o
d
 
b
y
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

M
a
r 
1
0
 

  S
e
p
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

S
e
p
 1
0
 

  N
o
v
 1
0
  

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

  P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

 P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

 

C
le
a
r 
ro
le
 
fo
r 
th
e
 

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
s
e
c
to
r 
w
it
h
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
a
n
d
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

b
u
ild
in
g
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

C
 
Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
 a
n
d
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

b
u
ild
in
g
 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 
to
 

e
n
a
b
le
 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
s
e
c
to
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

•
 
R
o
le
 o
f 
th
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 

a
g
re
e
d
 

•
 
C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 
b
u
ild
in
g
 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
to
 

e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
to
r 
to
 f
u
lf
il 
th
is
 r
o
le
 

•
 
C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 b
u
ild
in
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

 N
o
v
 1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

O
c
t 
1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
1
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

 P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

 P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

 

C
le
a
r 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 
th
a
t 
a
re
 

u
n
d
e
rs
to
o
d
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

D
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 

th
e
 r
o
le
s
, 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 o
f 
th
e
 L
S
C
B
 a
n
d
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 
T
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 
th
e
ir
 

s
u
b
-g
ro
u
p
s
 

•
 
R
o
le
 
a
n
d
 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 
o
f 
th
e
 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

T
ru
s
t 
d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 

•
 
R
o
le
 
a
n
d
 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 
o
f 
th
e
 
L
S
C
B
 

d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 

•
 
S
tr
u
c
tu
re
 
a
n
d
 
s
u
b
-g
ro
u
p
s
 
o
f 
th
e
 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

M
a
r 
1
0
 

 M
a
r 
1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

 O
c
t 
1
0
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

 G
ra
h
a
m
 

B
a
d
m
a
n
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

 

Page 41



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 2
0
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

T
ru
s
t 
d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 

•
 
S
tr
u
c
tu
re
 
a
n
d
 
s
u
b
-g
ro
u
p
s
 
o
f 
th
e
 
L
S
C
B
 

d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 

•
 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
ro
s
s
-c
u
tt
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 

a
s
 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 
v
io
le
n
c
e
 
d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 

 M
a
y
 1
0
 

 M
a
y
 1
0
 

 O
c
t 
1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

 G
ra
h
a
m
 

B
a
d
m
a
n
 

K
e
v
in
 

C
ro
m
p
to
n
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 j
o
in
e
d
 

u
p
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
in
 
lo
c
a
l 

a
re
a
s
 

F
 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
, 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 
a
n
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

 

•
 
R
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 
k
e
y
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 

•
 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 
a
n
d
 
m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
s
 m
a
p
p
e
d
 

•
 
M
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 
a
lig
n
e
d
 
o
r 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
  

J
u
n
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

O
c
t 
1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

 M
a
r 
1
1
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

 P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

 P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

 

C
h
ild
re
n
 
a
n
d
 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 
fe
e
l 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
 
in
 

in
fo
rm
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

G
 
D
e
te
rm
in
e
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
 o
f 
C
Y
P
 i
n
 

im
p
ro
v
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
In
v
o
lv
e
 
C
Y
P
 
in
 
re
v
ie
w
in
g
 
th
e
 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C
Y
P
 i
n
 i
n
fo
rm
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 
fo
r 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

c
h
ild
re
n
 
&
 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
in
 
th
e
 
w
o
rk
 
o
f 
th
e
 

L
S
C
B
 

•
 
M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 
to
 
in
v
o
lv
e
 
C
Y
P
 
in
 

re
v
ie
w
in
g
 /
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
R
o
le
 
o
f 
C
Y
P
 
in
 
th
e
 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 
T
ru
s
t 

d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

S
e
p
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

  N
o
v
 1
0
 

 N
o
v
 1
0
 

N
o
v
 1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

  D
e
c
 1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

 P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

  P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

 P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

 

U
s
e
rs
 
a
re
 
a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 
in
 
s
h
a
p
in
g
, 

in
fo
rm
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

H
 
C
h
ild
re
n
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
ir
 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 

a
re
 
g
iv
e
n
 
a
n
 
a
c
ti
v
e
 
ro
le
 
in
 

in
fo
rm
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 
to
 
g
a
in
 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

fr
o
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

•
 
F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 
u
ti
lis
e
d
 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 
to
 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

re
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

 O
c
t 
1
0
 

S
e
p
 1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

D
e
b
b
ie
 H
a
it
h
 

 D
e
b
b
ie
 H
a
it
h
 

 

  C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 &
 S
ta
ff
in
g
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

W
e
ll 
tr
a
in
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
h
ig
h
ly
 

c
o
m
p
e
te
n
t 
s
ta
ff
  

2
.1
1
 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 
th
e
 
c
h
ild
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 
c
o
re
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 

c
u
rr
ic
u
lu
m
 
fo
r 
s
ta
ff
 
o
f 
a
ll 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

•
 
D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 
v
io
le
n
c
e
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

•
 
R
is
k
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

•
 
D
e
te
rm
in
e
 
h
o
w
 
th
e
 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 
is
 
d
e
liv
e
re
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

•
 
M
a
p
 
o
u
t 
a
ll 
m
a
n
d
a
to
ry
 
a
n
d
 
o
p
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
h
ild
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 t
ra
in
in
g
 w
it
h
in
 k
e
y
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

•
 
Id
e
n
ti
fy
 a
g
e
n
c
y
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
n
d
 c
ro
s
s
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

g
a
p
s
 i
n
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

O
c
t 
0
9
 

 O
c
t 
0
9
 

A
p
r 
1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

 A
u
g
 1
0
 

 

M
a
r 
1
0
 

 M
a
r 
1
0
 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

 R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

 R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

 R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

 

L
S
C
B
 T
ra
in
in
g
 

S
u
b
-G
ro
u
p
 

Page 42



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 2
1
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

•
 
R
e
v
is
e
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 

c
ro
s
s
-p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 
o
f 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
, 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
tr
a
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 

A
u
g
 1
0
 

A
u
g
 1
0
 

  J
a
n
 1
1
 

D
e
c
 1
0
 

S
e
p
 1
0
 

  F
e
b
 1
1
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

2
.1
2
 
A
n
a
ly
s
e
 
c
ro
s
s
-p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

n
e
e
d
s
 

in
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 
s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

a
n
d
 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
o
f 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

•
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
ri
a
l 

c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
y
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 
a
 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

fo
c
u
s
e
d
 o
n
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 t
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
io
r 
te
a
m
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
  

•
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 m
e
n
to
ri
n
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 t
e
a
m
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
  

•
 
P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 
fo
r 
a
ll 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
to
 
a
d
d
re
s
s
 
th
e
s
e
 

n
e
e
d
s
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
in
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
  

J
a
n
 1
0
 

   J
a
n
 1
0
 

  A
p
r 
1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

F
e
b
 1
0
 

M
a
r 
1
0
 

   M
a
r 
1
0
 

  J
u
n
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 M
a
r 
1
1
 

A
p
r 
1
0
 

S
tu
a
rt
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

 

S
h
a
re
d
 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 
fo
r 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 
b
y
 

o
th
e
rs
 
w
h
o
 
a
re
 
a
b
le
 
to
 

ta
k
e
 a
n
 a
c
ti
v
e
 r
o
le
 

3
.0
6
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 

T
h
ir
d
 

S
e
c
to
r 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

•
 
In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
T
h
ir
d
 S
e
c
to
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

fo
r 
C
h
ild
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 P
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

•
 
A
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
s
e
c
to
r 
a
n
d
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
  

•
 
D
e
te
rm
in
e
 
ro
le
 
fo
r 
th
e
 
s
e
c
to
r,
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
/ 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 b
u
ild
in
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
  
 

•
 
S
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
o
f 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 
b
u
ild
in
g
 
/ 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
e
c
to
r 
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

•
 
Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

O
c
t 
1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

 A
p
r 
1
1
 

D
e
c
 1
0
 

 O
c
t 
1
0
 

D
e
c
 1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
1
 

 M
a
r 
1
2
 

D
e
b
b
ie
 H
a
it
h
 

 

 
3
.0
7
 
W
o
rk
 

w
it
h
 

G
P
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 L
M
C
 

to
 
in
te
g
ra
te
 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
to
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 c
a
re
 

•
 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 
b
u
ilt
 
in
to
 
G
P
s
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l 
P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

•
 
M
e
th
o
d
 o
f 
d
e
te
rm
in
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
/ 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 b
a
s
e
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
le
a
rn
in
g
 
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 

in
to
 r
e
v
ie
w
 (
C
la
ir
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
) 

J
a
n
 1
0
 

 A
u
g
 1
0
 

J
a
n
 1
1
 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

 O
c
t 
1
0
 

M
a
r 
1
1
 

J
u
lie
 Q
u
in
n
 

 

S
ta
ff
 
h
a
v
e
 
th
e
 
s
k
ill
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 
to
 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
 t
h
e
ir
 r
o
le
s
 

A
 

E
n
s
u
re
 
th
e
 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 
fo
r 

a
ll 
s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 
a
n
d
 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
ta
ff
 

•
 
Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
 
a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

a
n
d
 f
o
rm
a
t 
in
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
s
y
s
te
m
, 
e
v
e
n
 i
f 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
h
a
d
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 d
o
n
e
 

•
 
In
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 u
p
w
a
rd
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
o
f 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

•
 
F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 
a
n
d
 
Q
A
 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
  

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s
ta
ff
 s
u
rv
e
y
 

•
 
Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
 
a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

a
n
d
 f
o
rm
a
t 
in
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
y
s
te
m
s
, 
e
v
e
n
 i
f 

M
a
r 
1
0
 

  N
o
v
 1
0
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

 M
a
r 
1
0
 

 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

  N
o
v
 1
0
 

D
e
c
 1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

 

P
h
ili
p
p
a
 M
o
rr
is
 

  P
h
ili
p
p
a
 M
o
rr
is
 

P
h
ili
p
p
a
 M
o
rr
is
 

 K
a
re
n
 

B
a
g
g
a
le
y
 

 

Page 43



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 2
2
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
h
a
d
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 d
o
n
e
 

•
 
In
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 o
n
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 

 M
a
y
 1
0
 

 

 A
u
g
 1
0
 
 M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
 

B
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 
m
u
lt
i-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

w
it
h
 

a
ll 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

•
 
C
W
D
C
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 m
a
p
p
e
d
 

•
 
O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 s
c
o
p
e
d
 

•
 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 p
la
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

•
 
T
ra
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 p
ilo
te
d
 

•
 
T
ra
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 r
o
lle
d
-o
u
t 
a
n
d
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 

to
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
s
 u
s
u
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

•
 
In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 m
a
p
p
e
d
  

•
 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
lig
n
e
d
 

•
 
In
te
g
ra
te
d
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

d
ra
w
in
g
 o
n
 c
o
m
b
in
e
d
 s
k
ill
s
 

M
a
r 
1
0
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

S
e
p
 1
0
 

N
o
v
 1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

D
e
c
 1
0
 

M
a
r 
1
1
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

A
u
g
 1
0
 

A
u
g
 1
0
 

O
c
t 
1
0
 

D
e
c
 1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

M
a
r 
1
1
 

S
e
p
 1
1
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 
 

C
 

B
u
ild
in
g
 r
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

 
•
 
B
u
ild
in
g
 
re
s
ili
e
n
c
e
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 
&
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 

•
 
T
ra
in
in
g
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 t
o
 s
ta
ff
 

•
 
F
u
tu
re
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
b
u
ilt
 
in
to
 
th
e
 
s
u
it
e
 
o
ff
e
re
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L
S
C
B
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

O
c
t 
1
0
 

A
u
g
 1
0
 

 O
c
t 
1
0
 

M
a
r 
1
1
 

S
te
v
e
 D
ry
d
e
n
  

L
S
C
B
 T
ra
in
in
g
 

&
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

S
u
b
-G
ro
u
p
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

n
e
w
 
a
n
d
 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 

s
ta
ff
 

v
ie
w
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

a
s
 

th
e
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
o
ic
e
 

D
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 O
ff
e
r 

a
ro
u
n
d
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 

v
a
lu
e
d
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

o
f 

th
e
 

w
o
rk
p
la
c
e
. 

E
n
h
a
n
c
in
g
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 

(n
e
e
d
s
 

to
 

re
fl
e
c
t 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

n
o
t 

ju
s
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il)
 

 

•
 
F
u
lly
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 
th
e
 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 
O
ff
e
r 
a
s
 
a
 
c
ro
s
s
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
o
ff
e
r 
b
a
s
e
d
 
o
n
 
th
e
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
a
n
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 o
ff
e
re
d
 b
y
 a
 c
a
re
e
r 
in
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 O
ff
e
r 

•
 
L
a
u
n
c
h
 t
h
e
 O
ff
e
r 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

•
 
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 
fo
r 
s
e
c
o
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

a
d
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 

s
h
a
re
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

M
a
y
 1
0
 

  A
u
g
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

M
a
y
 1
0
 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

  S
e
p
 1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

O
c
t 
1
0
 

P
h
ili
p
p
a
 M
o
rr
is
  
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 
s
ta
ff
 
fe
e
l 

v
a
lu
e
d
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
th
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 
o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 

s
u
it
a
b
le
 

w
o
rk
lo
a
d
s
, 

s
y
s
te
m
s
 
a
n
d
 
to
o
ls
 

e
n
a
b
lin
g
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 p
e
rf
o
rm
 

to
 a
 h
ig
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
  
 

E
 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 

s
e
lf
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
S
o
c
ia
l 

W
o
rk
 
T
a
s
k
fo
rc
e
 
“H
e
a
lt
h
 

C
h
e
c
k
” 

•
 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
s
e
lf
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
S
W
 

T
a
s
k
 
F
o
rc
e
 
“H
e
a
lt
h
 
C
h
e
c
k
” 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
a
t 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ta
l,
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 t
e
a
m
 l
e
v
e
l 

•
 
H
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 a
t 
te
a
m
 l
e
v
e
l 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

•
 
H
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 a
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

•
 
H
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
e
c
k
 a
t 
d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 l
e
v
e
l 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

•
 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 
to
 
a
d
d
re
s
s
 
a
n
y
 
is
s
u
e
s
 
a
ri
s
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

P
la
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
  

J
u
n
 1
0
 

  J
u
n
 1
0
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

N
o
v
 1
0
 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

  O
c
t 
1
0
 

O
c
t 
1
0
 

O
c
t 
1
0
 

D
e
c
 1
0
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

  P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

 

  

Page 44



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 2
3
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

T
h
e
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 s
h
a
re
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

e
a
rl
y
 
y
e
a
rs
, 
c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

c
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

A
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 
w
it
h
 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

C
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 

•
 
M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

to
 

e
n
a
b
le
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
  

•
 
M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
fo
r 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 
ti
m
e
lin
e
s
s
 
o
f 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

•
 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 
fo
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 
s
e
t 
a
n
d
 

b
e
in
g
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 

•
 
M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 f
o
r 
E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 t
o
 f
in
d
 o
u
t 
w
h
o
 i
s
 

o
n
 
a
 
c
h
ild
 
p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 
p
la
n
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 

J
a
n
 1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

A
p
r 
1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

 O
c
t 
1
0
 

J
a
n
 D
o
u
s
t 
 

 D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 

 D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 

 J
a
n
e
 E
lia
s
 

 

C
lo
s
e
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 M
A
T
 

le
a
d
s
 t
o
 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 m
u
lt
i-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 w
o
rk
in
g
s
 

B
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 
c
ro
s
s
-p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
th
e
 F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 M
A
T
 

•
 
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 M
A
T
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
  

•
 
F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 
M
A
T
 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
 
b
a
s
e
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 s
c
o
re
c
a
rd
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

•
 
F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 M
A
T
 w
o
rk
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 m
a
p
p
e
d
 

F
e
b
 1
0
 

 M
a
y
 1
0
 

 A
p
r 
1
0
 

M
a
r 
1
0
 

 J
u
l 
1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
  

M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

M
a
ri
o
n
 

W
h
e
e
le
r 

 

R
o
b
u
s
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 
to
 

m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

ta
rg
e
t 

s
e
tt
in
g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 

a
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
g
o
a
ls
 

3
.0
8
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

a
 

s
h
a
re
d
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

o
f 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

•
 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 
te
a
m
s
 
b
e
tt
e
r 

c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
d
 
a
s
 
re
s
u
lt
 
o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 
a
n
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 
o
f 
e
a
c
h
 
o
th
e
rs
 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
s
 

•
 
F
e
a
s
ib
ili
ty
 
a
n
d
 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
n
e
s
s
 
o
f 
b
ri
n
g
in
g
 

to
g
e
th
e
r 
a
u
d
it
in
g
 
/ 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 
ro
le
s
 
fr
o
m
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
e
x
p
lo
re
d
 
a
n
d
 
re
p
o
rt
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

   S
e
p
 1
0
 

N
o
v
 1
0
 

   D
e
c
 1
0
  

 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
 

   M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
 

 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 
u
s
e
d
 
m
o
re
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
, 
le
a
d
in
g
 
to
 

a
n
 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
fo
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
 
a
n
d
 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
, 
p
a
re
n
ts
 
a
n
d
 

c
a
re
rs
 

C
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

a
 

g
re
a
te
r 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

o
f 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

•
 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 
te
a
m
s
 
fr
o
m
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
b
ro
u
g
h
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
to
 
s
h
a
re
 
a
n
d
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
 w
h
a
t 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
y
 h
o
ld
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 

th
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 b
e
tt
e
r 
u
s
e
d
 

•
 
A
n
a
ly
s
is
 
o
f 
w
h
a
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
c
h
ild
re
n
 
a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
a
re
 
b
e
in
g
 
re
fe
rr
e
d
 
to
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

   S
e
p
 1
0
  

S
e
p
 1
0
 

   D
e
c
 1
0
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 

   D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 

 

M
o
re
 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 
o
v
e
rs
ig
h
t 

o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 
b
y
 
th
e
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 T
ru
s
t 
 

D
 
W
id
e
n
 c
ro
s
s
 -
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

•
 
L
S
C
B
 
Q
u
a
lit
y
 
A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 
S
u
b
g
ro
u
p
’s
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 
s
c
o
re
c
a
rd
 
re
v
is
e
d
 
to
 
in
c
lu
d
e
 

g
re
a
te
r 
p
ro
x
y
 
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 
a
n
d
 
s
ta
ff
in
g
 

in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

•
 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 
T
ru
s
t’
s
 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 
b
e
y
o
n
d
 
L
A
A
 
a
n
d
 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

M
a
y
 1
0
 

  S
e
p
 1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

 

S
e
p
 1
0
 

  D
e
c
 1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
 

  D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 

 J
u
lie
 Q
u
in
n
 

 

L
S
C
B
 Q
A
 S
u
b
-

G
ro
u
p
 

Page 45



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 2
4
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

S
ta
rt
 

E
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

•
 
N
H
S
 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 r
o
lle
d
 
o
u
t 
to
 a
ll 

h
e
a
lt
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

•
 
Q
u
a
lit
y
 
o
f 
d
a
ta
 
c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 
in
 
a
ll 

N
H
S
 T
ru
s
ts
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 
D
e
c
 1
0
 
J
u
lie
 Q
u
in
n
 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

th
a
t 

a
re
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
h
ild
’s
 

a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

E
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
n
d
 
m
o
n
it
o
r 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 
fo
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 

to
 
a
 
c
h
ild
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 

 

•
 
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 
fo
r 
fa
m
ily
 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

•
 
U
s
e
 
o
f 
a
 
ta
ilo
re
d
 
S
tr
e
n
g
th
s
 
a
n
d
 
D
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
n
d
 s
im
ila
r 
to
o
ls
 e
x
p
lo
re
d
 

•
 
S
e
le
c
te
d
 
to
o
l 
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

•
 
M
e
th
o
d
s
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
fo
r 
g
a
u
g
in
g
 
c
lie
n
ts
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 
o
f 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
(s
) 
a
n
d
 

fe
d
 
in
to
 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 
w
it
h
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

S
e
p
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 J
a
n
 1
1
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

D
e
c
 1
1
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
1
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

D
e
b
b
ie
 H
a
it
h
 

 D
e
b
b
ie
 H
a
it
h
 

 D
e
b
b
ie
 H
a
it
h
 

 D
e
b
b
ie
 H
a
it
h
 

 

 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 
fo
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
 
a
n
d
 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 
re
c
e
iv
in
g
 
E
a
rl
y
 

Y
e
a
rs
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

F
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
n
d
 
m
o
n
it
o
r 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
h
o
 

h
a
v
e
 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 
E
a
rl
y
 

Y
e
a
rs
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
u
t 
a
re
 n
o
t 

s
u
b
je
c
t 

to
 
a
 
c
h
ild
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 

•
 
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 
M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 
fo
r 
E
a
rl
y
 
Y
e
a
rs
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
  

•
 
M
e
th
o
d
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
fo
r 
g
a
u
g
in
g
 
c
lie
n
ts
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

J
a
n
 1
1
 

 J
a
n
 1
1
 

D
e
c
 1
1
 

 D
e
c
 1
1
 

J
a
n
e
 E
lia
s
 

 J
a
n
e
 E
lia
s
 

 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 

G
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 C
A
F
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 

•
 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 
fo
r 
 

C
A
F
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
  

•
 
O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 
fo
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 
a
n
d
 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 

w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 C
A
F
 m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 

?
 
 ?
 

?
 
 ?
 

A
lis
o
n
 

B
o
th
a
m
 

A
lis
o
n
 

B
o
th
a
m
 

 

A
n
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

o
f 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

H
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

a
 

g
re
a
te
r 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

o
f 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 
D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 
v
io
le
n
c
e
 
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
a
ly
s
e
d
 

•
 
E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 
in
to
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
d
 

•
 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
  

•
 
F
in
d
in
g
s
 
fr
o
m
 
S
C
R
s
 
u
s
e
d
 
a
s
 
p
ro
x
y
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

 J
u
n
 1
0
 

S
e
p
 1
0
 

 

S
e
p
 1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

 S
e
p
 1
0
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 

O
c
t 
1
0
 

 

D
e
ir
d
re
 

C
re
g
a
n
 

A
rl
e
e
n
 B
ro
w
n
 

 A
rl
e
e
n
 B
ro
w
n
 

 A
rl
e
e
n
 B
ro
w
n
 

D
e
id
re
 

C
re
g
a
n
 

 

  

Page 46



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 2
5
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
  

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 t
o
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

   
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
s
e
t 

O
u
r 
a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 
s
e
t 
is
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
: 
 

 

•
 
O
u
tt
u
rn
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
0
-1
1
 w
ill
 b
e
 b
ro
a
d
ly
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rs
. 

•
 
O
u
tt
u
rn
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
1
-1
2
 w
ill
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
o
p
 q
u
a
rt
ile
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
. 

T
a
rg
e
t-
s
e
tt
in
g
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
is
 a
im
 i
n
 m
in
d
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
ta
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 
fu
tu
re
 y
e
a
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 r
e
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
2
0
0
9
-1
0
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
re
n
d
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rs
. 
T
h
e
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
f 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 i
s
 o
n
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 

im
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
h
o
rt
 t
o
 m
e
d
iu
m
 t
e
rm
. 

T
h
e
 t
a
b
le
 b
e
lo
w
 s
e
ts
 o
u
t 
th
o
s
e
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 w
h
ic
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 p
la
n
, 
w
it
h
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
-1
0
, 
2
0
1
0
-1
1
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
. 
  

 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
a
l 

T
a
rg
e
t 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
n
d
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

N
I 
5
9
 P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
In
it
ia
l 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 7
 d
a
y
s
 (
L
A
A
) 

3
9
.3
%
 

5
3
%
 

7
2
%
 

- 

N
I 
5
9
 P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
In
it
ia
l 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 1
0
 d
a
y
s
 (
n
e
w
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
) 

- 
- 

T
B
A
 

T
B
A
 

N
I 
6
0
 P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
C
o
re
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 3
5
 d
a
y
s
 (
L
A
A
) 

5
0
.3
%
 

6
3
%
 

8
1
%
 

8
3
%
 

N
I 
6
8
 R
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
o
 c
h
ild
re
n
's
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 g
o
in
g
 o
n
 t
o
 i
n
it
ia
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 

7
2
%
 

5
8
%
 

T
B
A
 

T
B
A
 

A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 i
n
 C
a
re
 

N
I 
6
1
 T
im
e
lin
e
s
s
 o
f 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
lo
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
n
 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
h
ild
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
la
c
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 (
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

w
h
o
 s
h
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
la
c
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 1
2
 m
o
n
th
s
 d
iv
id
e
d
 b
y
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
w
h
o
 c
e
a
s
e
d
 

5
0
%
 

7
8
%
 

8
0
%
 

8
5
%
 

Page 47



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 2
6
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
a
l 

T
a
rg
e
t 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

to
 b
e
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r)
 

N
I 
6
2
 
S
ta
b
ili
ty
 
o
f 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 
o
f 
lo
o
k
e
d
 
a
ft
e
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
: 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
m
o
v
e
s
 

(P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 a
t 
3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 w
it
h
 t
h
re
e
 o
r 
m
o
re
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r)
 

1
3
.3
%
 

1
1
%
 

1
0
%
 

9
%
 

N
I 
6
3
 
S
ta
b
ili
ty
 
o
f 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 
o
f 
lo
o
k
e
d
 
a
ft
e
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
: 
le
n
g
th
 
o
f 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 

(P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 
a
g
e
d
 
u
n
d
e
r 
1
6
 
a
t 
3
1
 
M
a
rc
h
 
w
h
o
 
h
a
d
 
b
e
e
n
 
lo
o
k
e
d
 
a
ft
e
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
ly
 f
o
r 
a
t 
le
a
s
t 
2
.5
 y
e
a
rs
 w
h
o
 w
e
re
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
a
t 

le
a
s
t 
2
 y
e
a
rs
, 
o
r 
a
re
 p
la
c
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 a
d
o
p
ti
v
e
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
la
s
t 
fo
r 
a
t 
le
a
s
t 
2
 y
e
a
rs
) 

7
1
.8
%
 

7
0
%
 

7
2
%
 

7
3
%
 

N
I 
6
6
 L
o
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 c
a
s
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 w
e
re
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
 (
L
A
A
) 

9
1
.1
%
 

9
7
%
 

9
8
%
 

9
9
%
 

C
h
il
d
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

N
I 
6
4
 C
h
ild
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
s
 l
a
s
ti
n
g
 t
w
o
 y
e
a
rs
 o
r 
m
o
re
 

2
7
.3
%
 

5
%
 

9
.5
%
 

7
%
 

N
I 
6
5
 C
h
ild
re
n
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
a
 C
h
ild
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
a
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 o
r 

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
ti
m
e
 

9
.3
%
 

1
0
%
 

1
0
%
 

9
.5
%
 

N
I 
6
7
 C
h
ild
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 c
a
s
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 w
e
re
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
 

(L
A
A
) 

9
5
.5
%
 

1
0
0
%
 

1
0
0
%
 

 

C
A
M
H
S
 

N
I 
5
1
 E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
c
h
ild
 a
n
d
 a
d
o
le
s
c
e
n
t 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 (
C
A
M
H
S
) 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 f
o
u
r 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 
e
a
c
h
 s
c
o
re
d
 o
u
t 
o
f 
fo
u
r,
 g
iv
in
g
 a
 m
a
x
im
u
m
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 

s
c
o
re
 o
f 
s
ix
te
e
n
) 

 
1
5
 

T
B
A
 

T
B
A
 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

N
I 
7
0
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 c
a
u
s
e
d
 b
y
 u
n
in
te
n
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 d
e
lib
e
ra
te
 i
n
ju
ri
e
s
 t
o
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

 
2
2
.6
8
 

T
B
A
 

T
B
A
 

  O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

L
o
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
, 
s
ta
ff
in
g
 l
e
v
e
ls
, 
s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
re
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
. 
F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 o
n
 v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 r
a
te
s
, 
s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 l
e
v
e
ls
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s
ta
ff
 (
b
ro
k
e
n
 d
o
w
n
 b
y
 

Page 48



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 2
7
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 a
g
e
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 b
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
) 
fo
rm
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 ‘
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 O
ff
e
r’
. 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
ls
 a
ls
o
 f
o
rm
 p
a
rt
 

o
f 
th
e
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
 o
n
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 m
o
n
th
ly
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
. 
 

L
o
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 –
 L
S
C
B
 Q
A
 S
u
b
-g
ro
u
p
 d
a
ta
s
e
t 

T
h
e
 L
S
C
B
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 s
u
b
-g
ro
u
p
 d
a
ta
s
e
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 m
o
re
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 t
h
a
t 
m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 
T
h
e
 g
ro
u
p
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 d
o
in
g
 s
o
m
e
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 a
u
d
it
 t
o
o
l.
 F
in
d
in
g
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
is
 w
o
rk
 w
h
ic
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 p
la
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 m
o
n
th
ly
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 a
s
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 

 C
a
s
e
 a
u
d
it
s
 

A
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
u
d
it
 t
o
o
l 
fo
r 
e
v
a
lu
a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
 p
ilo
t 
a
u
d
it
 o
f 
3
0
 c
a
s
e
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
S
ta
ff
 

w
ill
 b
e
 t
ra
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 t
o
o
l 
in
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
, 
w
it
h
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
q
u
a
lit
a
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
-d
e
p
th
 a
u
d
it
s
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 f
ro
m
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 w
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 a
 s
e
ri
e
s
 o
f 
q
u
a
n
ti
ta
ti
v
e
 a
u
d
it
s
 f
ro
m
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 f
ro
m
 b
o
th
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 a
u
d
it
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 

in
 t
h
e
 m
o
n
th
ly
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 p
la
n
. 

P
A
N
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 C
A
F
 Q
A
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
  

T
h
e
 P
a
n
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 C
A
F
 P
ro
to
c
o
l 
c
o
m
e
s
 i
n
to
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 
T
h
e
 P
ro
to
c
o
l 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 a
n
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 a
ll 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 s
e
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 m
in
im
u
m
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
c
h
ild
re
n
, 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
it
h
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
to
c
o
l 
in
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 C
A
F
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
th
e
 C
A
F
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
T
h
e
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 W
o
rk
in
g
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
n
o
m
in
a
te
d
 a
u
d
it
o
rs
, 
a
n
d
 s
e
tt
in
g
 u
p
 o
f 
a
n
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 t
e
a
m
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
. 
Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 i
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 

fo
r 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
, 
a
n
d
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 m
o
n
th
ly
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 s
ta
ff
 s
u
rv
e
y
 

A
 
s
u
rv
e
y
 
to
 
g
a
th
e
r 
th
e
 
v
ie
w
s
 
o
f 
p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
o
n
 
a
 
ra
n
g
e
 
o
f 
is
s
u
e
s
 
w
ill
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
a
 
m
e
a
n
s
 
o
f 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 
th
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
, 
a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
o
 g
a
u
g
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 b
ro
a
d
e
r 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 

c
re
a
ti
n
g
 a
n
 o
p
e
n
 c
u
lt
u
re
 w
h
e
re
 s
ta
ff
 f
e
e
l 
a
b
le
 t
o
 e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 v
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 e
a
c
h
 o
th
e
r’
s
 p
e
rs
p
e
c
ti
v
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
e
e
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

w
o
rk
. 
T
h
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 w
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
in
 s
p
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
0
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 a
 f
u
tu
re
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
. 
 A
 f
o
llo
w
-u
p
 s
u
rv
e
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 

to
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
r 
a
n
d
 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

Page 49



S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
A
p
p
3
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
0
.d
o
c
  

P
a
g
e
 2
8
 o
f 
2
9
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 0
2
/0
7
/2
0
1
0
 

 W
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
r 
a
n
d
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 P
la
n
, 
it
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 

m
o
n
th
ly
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
. 
C
h
a
n
n
e
ls
 f
o
r 
th
is
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
: 

•
 
T
h
e
 ‘
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 c
h
ild
re
n
 c
o
n
v
e
rs
a
ti
o
n
’ 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 r
ic
h
 s
o
u
rc
e
 o
f 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ri
m
a
ri
ly
 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 t
h
a
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 m
a
k
e
 f
o
r 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 c
h
ild
re
n
, 
b
u
t 
a
ls
o
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 v
ie
w
s
 o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
, 
th
e
 C
A
F
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 e
tc
. 
 

•
 
V
ie
w
p
o
in
t 
is
 a
 c
o
m
p
u
te
r 
b
a
s
e
d
 s
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 c
a
re
 t
o
 g
iv
e
 t
h
e
ir
 v
ie
w
s
 o
n
lin
e
. 
A
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 c
o
lla
te
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 

a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
  
 

•
 
F
o
r 
p
a
re
n
ts
 w
h
o
s
e
 c
h
ild
 i
s
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
 c
h
ild
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
, 
a
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 i
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
m
 t
o
 g
iv
e
 t
h
e
ir
 v
ie
w
s
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
. 
 

   W
h
e
re
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 w
ill
 e
n
a
b
le
 a
 m
ix
 o
f 
q
u
a
n
ti
ta
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 q
u
a
lit
a
ti
v
e
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
n
d
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 t
a
n
g
ib
le
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 g
ro
u
n
d
. 

  F
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 D
C
S
F
 a
n
d
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 f
o
r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 (
G
o
L
) 
o
n
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
. 
 O
v
e
r 
th
e
 c
o
m
in
g
 

m
o
n
th
s
 
w
o
rk
 
w
ill
 
b
e
 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
 
to
 
in
te
g
ra
te
 
th
e
s
e
 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
s
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
P
la
n
 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
a
 s
c
o
re
c
a
rd
 /
 d
a
s
h
b
o
a
rd
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
is
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 

 

Page 50



 
 
 
 
 

 

   Overview and Scrutiny Committee                       On 21 July 2010 
 
 

 

Report Title:  An Update Report on Key Performance Issues in Child Protection 
 

Report of:  Peter Lewis, Director of Children and Young People’s Service 

 
 

Contact Officer : Mark Gurrey, Deputy Director, Children and Families 

Email:  

Tel: 0208 489 4641 
 
 

 
Wards(s) affected: ALL 
 

Report for: Non-Key Decision 

1. Purpose of the report (That is, the decision required)  

      This report provides an update on some key performance issues relating to the       
Council’s work to safeguard and protect vulnerable children. 

 

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary) 

2.1.   
 

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies: 

 

4. Recommendations 

4.1. To Note this report 
 

 

Agenda Item 8Page 51



 

 2 

 
5. Reason for recommendation(s) 

5.1.  

 
6. Other options considered 

6.1. N/A 
 

 
7. Summary 
 
This report provides update on some key performance issues relating to the Council’s 

7.1. work to safeguard and protect vulnerable children 

8.  Financial Comments 

8.1. There are no specific financial issues arising from this report 

9.  Head of Legal Services Comments 

9.1 n/a 
 

10.  Head of Procurement Comments – [Required for Procurement Committee] 

10.1. n/a 
 

11.  Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments 

11.1. n/a 

 

12. Consultation 

           12.1  n/a 

13  Use of appendices /Tables and photographs 

13.1 Attached are graphs (Appendix 1) containing the National Indicators (NI’s) 
relating to the Children and Families Service. These contain details of annual 
performance and targets, comparative data and recent monthly data.  

 
 

14  Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 

 

Page 52



 

 3 

Commentary to Appendix of NIs 
 
15. Referrals – the table below shows the rates of referrals per 10,000 population 
under 18 compared with the previous years and national averages.  
 

 

Haringey 
31/3/09 Rate 

per 10,000 

Haringey 
31/3/10 Rate 

per 10,000 

National 
Average 
31/03/09  

Haringey 
31/3/09 

Number 

Haringey 
31/3/10 

Number 

Number of 
Referrals 
Received in the 
Year 575 699 497  2817 3423 

 
2009/10 national averages are currently unavailable, however, in the graphs below, 
2008/09 national averages have been uplifted in line with the reported increases within 
the ADCS survey – which in summary are 12% increase in referrals; 33% increase in 
children subject to plans and 17% increase in children in care. 
 

Number of Referrals Received in the Year

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Haringey 31/3/09 Rate per

10,000

Haringey 31/3/10 Rate per

10,000

 National Average

31/03/2009

 
 
16. NI 68 – this measures the conversion rate of referrals going onto be initial 
referrals. Outturns are increasingly closer to national and statistical neighbours. 
 
17. Assessments - NI 59 – initial assessments, once authorised, should be completed 
in 7 days to ensure an early and timely view is taken of children’s needs. The timescale 
for completion of initial assessments has changed from 2010/11 to allow 10 days for 
initial assessments to be completed rather than 7. NI 60 – for more complex cases, a 
more comprehensive assessment is required. These are known as ‘core assessments’ 
and are required to be completed in 35 days. The data below breaks down the number 
of assessment completed against those completed in timescale 
 
 
 
 
 

   March-10 
National 
Average 
2009-10 

2010-11 
Plan 

Apr-10 May-10 

Page 53



 

 4 

Number of Initial Assessments 
Completed in the Month 

168     139 142 

Number of Initial Assessments 
Completed within 7 days 

66     39 47 

Percentage of Initial Assessments 
Completed in 7 days 

39.3% 
    

28.1% 33.1% 

NI59 - Year to date position of Initial 
Assessments Completed in 7 days 

28.3% 72% 72% 28.1% 30.6% 

Number of initial assessments 
completed within 10 days 

  
  

  88 107 

Percentage of Initial Assessments 
Completed in 10 days 

51.8% 
  

  63.3% 75.4% 

Year to date position of Initial 
Assessments Completed in 10 days 

  
  

75% 63.3% 69.4% 

Number of initial assessments 
completed in the month which had 
been started in the month 

86 
  

  71 82 

Number of initial assessments 
started and completed in the month, 
in 7 days 

72.0% 
  

  45% 54% 

Number of initial assessments 
started and completed in the month, 
in 10 days 

88.4% 
  

  90.1% 91.5% 

Number of Core Assessments 
Completed in the Month 

171     76 118 

Number of Core Assessments 
Completed within 35 days of initial 
assessment 

86     38 60 

Percentage of Core Assessments 
Completed within 35 days 

50.3% 
    

50% 50.8% 

NI 60 - Year to date position of Core 
Assessments Completed 

45.9% 78% 81% 50% 50.5% 

 
18. Numbers subject to a child protection plan – this is what previously was 
referred to as the child protection register. The table below shows the rates of children 
subject to child protection plans per 10,000 population under 18 compared with the 
previous years and national averages. 
 

 

Haringey 
31/3/09 

Rate per 
10,000 

Haringey 
31/3/10 

Rate per 
10,000 

National 
Average 
31/03/09  

Haringey 
31/3/09 

Number 

Haringey 
31/3/10 

Number 

Number of 
Children Subject to 
a Child Protection 
Plan 33 60 34  179 296 

 
The graph below shows the estimated National Average uplift for 2009/10: 

Page 54



 

 5 

Number of Children Subject to a Child Protection Plan

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Haringey 31/3/09 Rate per

10,000

Haringey 31/3/10 Rate per

10,000

 National Average

31/03/2009

 
 
19. NI 67 – children who are subject to plans should be reviewed initially after three 
months and then every six months thereafter. In May there were 2 children whose 
reviews had been held out of timescale in the year (01 April 10 – 31 March 11) 
 
20. NI 65 – this measures children newly becoming subject to a plan who had 
previously had a plan some time in their earlier life. Numbers are small and monthly 
variations are not a reliable indicator of performance. In May, 6 out of 21 children who 
were made subject to a Child Protection Plan had previously been subject to a plan. 
 
21. NI 64 – this measures children who, when their child protection plan ceases, had 
had a plan for two or more years. Again monthly variation is too small to be a reliable 
indicator of trends. In May, 2 out of 19 children who ceased to be subject to a Child 
Protection Plan had been subject to a plan for two or more years. 
 
22. Number of children in care – Members will observe the increase over the last 12 
months which is reflected nationally.  
 
The table below shows the rates of children in care per 10,000 population under 18 
compared with the previous years and national averages. 
 

 

Haringe
y 31/3/09 
Rate per 
10,000 

Haringe
y 31/3/10 
Rate per 
10,000 

National 
Average 

31/03/2009  

Haringe
y 31/3/09 
Number 

Haringe
y 31/3/10 
Number 

Number of Children in Care 100 119 55  492 585 

 
The graph below shows the estimated National Average uplift for 2009/10: 

Page 55



 

 6 

Number of Children in Care

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Haringey 31/3/09 Rate per

10,000

Haringey 31/3/10 Rate per

10,000

 National Average

31/03/2009

 
 
23. NI 66 – as with children subject to plans, children in care also have to regularly 
reviewed. In May, 539 out of 573 children in care had an up to date review.  
 
24. NI 63 and 62 – are both measures of the stability of children in care. NI63 
measures those who have been in the same placement for at least 2 of the last 2.5 
years. In May, 98 out of 139 children who had been in care for 2.5 years or more had 
been in the same placement for at least 2 years. NI62 measures how many children 
have three or more moves in the course of a year – performance is good (and when 
these PIs were subject to bandings, 0-16% was considered top performance). In May,  
78 out of 607 children in care have had three or more placements so far in the year 
(April 10 – March 10). 
 
25. Adoptions/Special Guardianship Orders - There has been one adoption and one 
special guardianship order granted to date. NI61 – the child adopted in May was not 
placed within 12 months of best interest.  
 
26. NI 147 – measures the number of care leavers known to be in suitable 
accommodation. 6 out of 6 children who turned 19 in May were in suitable 
accommodation on or around their 19th birthday. 
 
27. NI 148 – is a subset of the Council’s NEET figures and looks at 19 year old care 
leavers who were in Education, Training or Employment on or around their 19th 
birthday. Care leavers are one of the hard to reach groups. 3 out of 6 children who 
turned 19 in May were in education, training or employment on or around their 19th 
birthday.  

Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
MONDAY, 8 MARCH 2010 

 
Councillors Councillors Bull (Chair), Adamou (Vice-Chair), Adje, Mallett, Newton and Winskill 

 
Apologies Councillor Aitken and H. Kania (LINks representative) 

 
Also Present: Co-optees: Y. Denny (Church Representative) 

Councillor Reith 
Officers: Peter Lewis (Director Children & Young People’s Service), 
Mark Gurrey (Deputy Director – Children & Families), Trevor Cripps 
(Head of Scrutiny), Natalie Cole (Clerk) 
Also attending: Jane Elias (Great Ormond Street Hospital), Jane 
Collins (Great Ormond Street Hospital), Hilary Corrick (Independent 
Social Work Consultant, and Independent Member of Safeguarding 
Policy & Performance Advisory Committee) and one member of the 
press  

 

MINUTE 
NO. 

 
SUBJECT/DECISION 

 

OSCO23. 
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Aitken and 
Jones (attending for agenda item 8 – Safeguarding Policy and 
Performance Advisory Committee) and Helena Kania (Local 
Involvement Network (LINks) Co-optee). 
 

OSCO24. 
 

URGENT BUSINESS 

 There was no urgent business. 
 

OSCO25. 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 Councillor Toni Mallett declared a personal interest in agenda item 8 – 
Safeguarding Policy and Performance Advisory Committee – as she 
was a member of the Advisory Committee. 
 

OSCO26. 
 

DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS 

 There were no such items. 
 

OSCO27. 
 

MINUTES 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 3rd December 2009 were 
confirmed as a correct record of the meeting. 
 

OSCO28. 
 

ORDER OF AGENDA 

 RESOLVED that the order of agenda be varied to accommodate those 
in attendance.  The order in which items appear in the minutes will 
remain the same as on the agenda. 
 
 

Agenda Item 10Page 67



MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
MONDAY, 8 MARCH 2010 

 

OSCO29. 
 

SAFEGUARDING PLAN 

 The Committee received the report on the Safeguarding Plan for 
Haringey, introduced by Peter Lewis, Director of Children & Young 
People’s Service (CYPS) and noted that nearly all but two (1.19 and 
1.20 – page 23) milestones had been achieved. 
 
Milestone 1.19 – Agree, implement and train staff on a Critical Incident 
De-briefing model within organisations and across multi-disciplinary 
teams – this was rated red although partners were working together to 
achieve this. 
 
Milestone 1.20 – All Appropriate staff attend Safeguarding Induction 
Programme – the Council was slightly behind schedule on this 
milestone, which would be completed in the next two months. 
 
The Committee asked that more detail be provided on the priorities for 
further improvement in safeguarding and requested an update on 
progress for milestone 2.12 (Analyse cross-partnership training needs 
in management, supervision and safeguarding and develop a 
programme of training).   
 
The Committee noted the progress report from Ofsted and Care 
Quality Commission (CQC) inspectors who visited the Council in 
January 2010 and that the Council was given an overall judgement of 
“good” and was considered to be improving at an “appropriate pace” 
with the efforts of staff being recognised.  The Committee thanked 
staff for their hard work. 
 
The Committee asked what was being done to reduce the large 
number of agency staff and noted that the First Response Team would 
see a decrease in agency workers in the forthcoming year as it had 
been overstaffed in the past year, this will enable temporary staff to 
apply for permanent vacancies in the Council.  High numbers of 
agency staff was a London-wide issue for Children’s Services but 
Haringey salaries were comparable with competitors.  The Council 
was taking part in a national recruitment event in May 2010. 
 
Committee Members expressed concerns at the sickness rates in the 
Service and it was requested that in future these were provided with a 
more detailed breakdown including long-term and short-term sickness 
and some commentary to show that rates were not an indicator of 
problems within the service. The Committee also expressed concerns 
that sickness targets of 8.5 days were unrealistic. The Director CYPS 
explained that he would report back to the Committee when he had 
discussed the possibility of reducing the Service¹s sickness targets 
with the Human Resources Departments. 
 
Jane Elias, Great Ormond Street Hospital, informed the Committee 
that the health visitor service currently had only 6 vacancies for health 
visitors. Targeted focus was on vulnerable and disabled children but 
the service would cover more areas in future.  At present every family 

Page 68



MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
MONDAY, 8 MARCH 2010 

 

received a visit when a child is new-born, every family had access to 
weigh-in services although this was conducted by health visitor 
assistants with a health visitor present and all families had access to 
further advice and support.   
 
Some Committee Members highlighted individual cases and 
expressed concerns that today¹s reduced Health Visitor service was 
not adequate in safeguarding children.  The Director CYPS suggested 
providing Members with a report showing how the Council met the 
needs of families and was properly safeguarding including the 
mechanisms in place to monitor.   
 
The Committee raised the issue of Post Natal Depression as this 
might not be picked up during the initial visit from the Health Visitor 
Service leading to potential problems in the family remaining 
undetected. The Committee requested that Post Natal Depression, 
and how this was identified in the first few years was included in any 
report on how the Council met the needs of families and was properly 
safeguarding. 
 
In response to its questions the Committee noted that where families 
missed health visitor appointments these were followed-up and that 
the Council had constructed an outreach strategy to engage with 
families who were not using health visiting services. 
 
The Committee agreed that the Chair would write to the Primary Care 
Trust and Great Ormond Street Hospital (GOSH) expressing concerns 
that the Committee had not been consulted on the withdrawal of 
Universal Health Visitor Services in 2008. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
i. That the progress in delivery of the Safeguarding Plan 

milestones and key performance indicators be noted. 
 
ii. That the arrangement in place for managing programme level 

risks be noted. 
 
iii. That the outcomes of the Ofsted follow-up inspection in January 

2010 and the plans for refreshing the Safeguarding Plan in 
order to enable our safeguarding of children and young people 
to be recognised as being among the best by 2012 be noted. 

 

OSCO30. 
 

SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PERFORMANCE ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE 

  
Clerk’s note:  19:35 hrs – Councillor Bull  left the room and the 
meeting was chaired by the Vice-Chair, Councillor Adamou. 
 
The Committee received the report from the Children’s Safeguarding 
Policy and Performance Advisory Committee, introduced by Hilary 
Corrick , Independent Social Work Consultant, and Independent 

Page 69



MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
MONDAY, 8 MARCH 2010 

 

Member of Safeguarding Policy & Performance Advisory Committee.  
It was noted that the Advisory Committee had been scrutinising 
Haringey cases and would continue in its work for the foreseeable 
future. 
 
The Committee noted that an Annual Child Protection Conference 
would be held on September 2010, led by the Local Safeguarding 
Children’s Board. 
 
The Committee asked what would happen in the case of a vulnerable 
child who had no recourse to public funds and noted that such cases 
would be closely supported by dedicated teams within the First 
Response Team. 
 
Clerk’s note:  19:40 hrs – Councillor Bull returned to the meeting and 
resumed as Chair of the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

OSCO31. 
 

CHILD PROTECTION PERFORMANCE AND KEY ISSUES 

 The Committee received the update report on key performance issues 
in child protection, introduced by Mark Gurrey, Deputy Director – C&F 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

OSCO32. 
 

NI 59 - INITIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR CHILDREN'S SOCIAL CARE 
COMPLETED WITHIN 7 DAYS 

 The Committee received the report on National Indicator (NI) – Initial 
Assessments Completed in 7 Days introduced by Mark Gurrey, 
Deputy Director C&F who emphasised that whilst timeliness was 
important the issue of the quality of assessments was paramount in 
some more complex cases. 
 
The Chair would ask the Cabinet Member for Children & Young 
People to keep the Committee informed of the judgements by the 
Independent Auditors on Initial and Core Assessments.   
 
The Deputy Director Children & Families would provide links to the 
procedures for assessments followed by the Council. 
 
RESOLVED  that the report be noted. 
 

OSCO33. 
 

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS 

 There were no new items of urgent business. 
 

OSCO34. 
 

FUTURE MEETINGS 

 The next meeting of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee will be on 
Monday 15th March 2010, 6.00pm at the Civic Centre. 
 

Page 70



MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
MONDAY, 8 MARCH 2010 

 

 
 
COUNCILLOR GIDEON BULL 
 
Chair 
 
 
The meeting ended at 19:45 hrs 
 
 
SIGNED AT MEETING…….DAY 
 
OF………………………………… 
 
CHAIR…………………………… 

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 CABINET MEMBER QUESTIONS
	7 Children and Young People's Service safeguarding plan
	Safeguarding Plan  App 1 -  Glossary of Terms
	Safeguarding Plan App 2a Milestone Summary
	Safeguarding Plan - App 2b Milestone Exception
	Safeguarding Plan  - App 3 Safeguarding Plan

	8 CHILD PROTECTION PERFORMANCE AND KEY ISSUES
	performance appendix 1

	10 Minutes

